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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements which are made pursuant to the safe harbor provisions of Section 27A of the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). These
statements may be identified by such forward-looking terminology as “may,” “will,” “should,” “expects,” “intends,” “plans,” “anticipates,” “believes,”
“estimates,” “predicts,” “potential,” “continue” or the negative of these terms or other comparable terminology. Our forward-looking statements are based on
a series of expectations, assumptions, estimates and projections about our company, are not guarantees of future results or performance and involve
substantial risks and uncertainty. We may not actually achieve the plans, intentions or expectations disclosed in these forward-looking statements. Actual
results or events could differ materially from the plans, intentions and expectations disclosed in these forward-looking statements. Our business and our
forward-looking statements involve substantial known and unknown risks and uncertainties, including the risks and uncertainties inherent in our statements

regarding:

» « » «

e our ability to add new customers or increase listings or rentals on our platform;
e our ability to expand and train our sales team;

e the potential benefits of and our ability to maintain our relationships with ridesharing companies, and establish or maintain future collaborations
or strategic relationships or obtain additional funding;

e our marketing capabilities and strategy;

e our ability to maintain a cost-effective insurance program;

e our ability to retain the continued service of our key professionals and to identify, hire and retain additional qualified professionals;
e  our competitive position, and developments and projections relating to our competitors and our industry;

e our estimates regarding expenses, future revenue, capital requirements and needs for additional financing; and

e the impact of laws and regulations.

All of our forward-looking statements are as of the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K only. In each case, actual results may differ materially
from such forward-looking information. We can give no assurance that such expectations or forward-looking statements will prove to be correct. An
occurrence of, or any material adverse change in, one or more of the risk factors or risks and uncertainties referred to in this Annual Report on Form 10-K or
included in our other public disclosures or our other periodic reports or other documents or filings filed with or furnished to the U.S. Securities and Exchange
Commission could materially and adversely affect our business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations. Except as required by law, we do not
undertake or plan to update or revise any such forward-looking statements to reflect actual results, changes in plans, assumptions, estimates or projections or
other circumstances affecting such forward-looking statements occurring after the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, even if such results, changes or
circumstances make it clear that any forward-looking information will not be realized. Any public statements or disclosures by us following this Annual
Report on Form 10-K that modify or impact any of the forward-looking statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K will be deemed to modify
or supersede such statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

This Annual Report on Form 10-K may include market data and certain industry data and forecasts, which we may obtain from internal company
surveys, market research, consultant surveys, publicly available information, reports of governmental agencies and industry publications, articles and surveys.
Industry surveys, publications, consultant surveys and forecasts generally state that the information contained therein has been obtained from sources believed
to be reliable, but the accuracy and completeness of such information is not guaranteed. While we believe that such studies and publications are reliable, we
have not independently verified market and industry data from third-party sources.
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PART1I

Throughout this Annual Report on Form 10-K, the “Company,” “HyreCar,” “we,” “us,” and “our” refers to HyreCar Inc. and “our board of
directors” or our “Board” refers to the board of directors of HyreCar Inc.

Item 1. Business
Overview

HyreCar Inc. was formed as a corporation in the State of Delaware on November 24, 2014. Our founders identified the need for a car-sharing
platform for individuals who wanted to drive for ride-sharing companies such as Uber Technologies Inc. (“Uber”) and Lyft, Inc. (“Lyft”), but whose
automobiles could not meet the standards imposed by the ride-sharing companies. For example, Uber maintains strict guidelines regarding the types of cars a
driver can use. Although guidelines relating to cars can differ by state, in general the use of two door coupes, motorcycles and cars that are 12 years or older
are excluded. Our founders, before deciding to purchase qualifying sedans that met Uber’s strict guidelines, first inquired as to whether there were any rental
options available from Uber that would allow them to drive for the ride-sharing platform. To their surprise, there were no rental options available, other than a
shadow industry of individuals renting cars to one another.

HyreCar is a unique peer-to-peer car-sharing marketplace that allows car owners (collectively, “Owners”) to rent their idle cars to ride-sharing
service drivers (collectively, “Drivers”). By sourcing vehicles from individual Owners, part-time Drivers may easily enter and exit the market and our
business model allows us to satisfy fluctuating transportation demand in cities around the United States by matching Owners and Drivers.

Our business is based on a proprietary car-sharing marketplace developed to (i) onboard Owners and Drivers, (ii) facilitate the matching of Owners
and Drivers and (iii) log rental activity for Owners and Drivers. All transactions related to the rental (including, but not limited to, background checks, rentals,
deposits and insurance costs) are run securely through the HyreCar platform. Drivers and Owners access their rental or car dashboards through a unique login.
Drivers can easily initiate, terminate or extend a rental through the platform while Owners can manage their car or fleet of cars through the platform.

We believe we have a competitive advantage with our commercial automobile insurance policy that covers both Owners and Drivers. The policy is
specifically designed to cover the period of time in which a Driver is operating an Owner’s vehicle while not actively operating a vehicle on a ride-sharing
platform, such as Uber or Lyft. During the periods when Drivers are actively operating on a ride-sharing platform, the insurance subordinates to the state
mandated insurance provided by the ride-sharing business. To our knowledge, we are the only provider of this car-matching service which is made possible
by this unique insurance product.

To date, the majority of our sales growth has been through organic search traffic. Going forward however, we intend to significantly increase our
spending on marketing because we believe that online channels and offline brand awareness advertising will provide substantial opportunities for growth.

Industry and Market Opportunities

Our company was founded to capitalize on a combination of two growth markets: ride-sharing (an industry led by Uber and Lyft) and car-sharing (an
industry led by companies such as Fair.com, Turo, Inc. and ZipCar, Inc.). Our customers are the Drivers that use our car-sharing platform to rent a car and
then use that car to make money driving for either Uber or Lyft. Finding enough cars and drivers to meet demand has been a problem for ride-sharing
companies.

The transportation industry represents a massive market. In the United States alone, consumer expenditures on transportation were approximately
$1.2 trillion in 2017, and transportation was the second largest household expenditure after housing and was almost twice as large as healthcare and three
times as large as entertainment. We believe we are still in the very early phases of capturing this massive opportunity. In 2016, ridesharing accounted for just
one percent of the vehicle miles traveled in the United States and in a 2016 survey, 57% of U.S. respondents who used sharing services said that well-priced
and convenient offerings could cause them to give up ownership altogether.




We believe that we are the only peer-to-peer car-sharing platform focused on the ride-sharing industry in the United States. We have added over
15,000 new Drivers, matching them with Owner vehicles that have been used on the Uber and Lyft platforms over the past several years. During the years
ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, we added approximately 7,600 and 4,400 new Drivers, respectively, into cars so that they could drive for Uber and Lyft.
These numbers represent an equivalent 73.0% growth rate in new drivers onto the HyreCar platform year over year.

Ride-sharing Industry (Uber and Lyft)

The growth in ride-sharing over the past few years has kicked off a transportation revolution. Smart phones are now used as ride hailing apps,
transactions are processed seamlessly through online platforms and transportation as a service is becoming more and more personalized. The industry has
experienced tremendous traction. According to a July 2016 post on TechCrunch, it took Uber six years, to December 2015, to complete a billion rides and just
six months later, Uber announced that it had completed its two-billionth ride.

Transportation Network Companies (“TNCs”) like Uber and Lyft have reported high demand from Drivers but many of these would be Drivers do
not own a car that qualifies for their platforms. Lyft reported it had 1.9 million drivers in North America in 2018 and Uber reportedly has even more. In 2016,
a spokesperson for Uber estimated that approximately 10% to 15% of their potential drivers/partners do not own a qualifying car. Further, Lyft estimates that
there are approximately 60,000 people in the city of Chicago alone that want to drive for their platform, but do not currently own a qualifying car, and
General Motors also estimates that there are approximately 160,000 potential drivers in the DC Metro area, Baltimore, Chicago and Boston who do not own a
qualifying car.

Accordingly, TNCs are actively taking steps to satisfy their driver demand by setting up programs designed to get eligible drivers into qualified cars,
including such programs as the Enterprise/Uber partnership, the Lyft Express Driver partnership with Hertz and Pep Boys, and the General Motor’s Maven
program. These programs serve as a validation that there is a healthy market to pair eligible drivers with qualified cars.

Car-sharing Industry

In January 2016, The Economist reported that the trend to utilize cars during such idle periods is growing and even traditional car clubs are exploring
the car-sharing market, where members of such clubs are allowed to book car usage by mobile app for periods as short as 15 minutes. Furthermore, such car-
sharing usage is currently experiencing growth of over 30% a year, with a projected revenue collection of more than $16.5 billion by 2024. A study on the
scope of the sharing economy published by UBS Global Research — Q Series titled “What is the Scope of the Sharing Economy” on July 20, 2016 estimates
that the Shared Transportation segment, which they define as digitally enabled non-private transport, will recognize approximately $350 billion market
opportunity by 2020, representing a 5-year compound annual growth rate of approximately 54%. We believe will be able to capitalize on this opportunity as
existing demand from traditional taxi and public transportation options is transferred to shared transportation. Further, growth is expected from this
opportunity as the accelerating trend of the mass ease-of-use and availability of shared transportation permanently shifts driving habits away from personal
vehicle ownership. Evidence of this decline, while not yet a national trend, can be seen in large cities as vehicle ownership is beginning to decline. Longer
term, we envision a potential impact on the auto industry as a whole from a subset of people permanently changing their driving habits and selling their cars
entirely in favor of using shared transportation (UBS estimates that approximately 40 million cars will be replaced by 2020).

Another recent analysis by Morgan Stanley indicates that the estimated amount of global car miles traveled through shared vehicle usage by 2030
will hit 19.6 billion, or approximately 26% of all miles traveled (up from only 10.2 billion miles travelled in 2015). Given the excess capacity of vehicle
hours, higher vehicle utilization rates, and lower vehicle ownership rates, we expect a consumer shift towards the acceptance of car-sharing as a part of
everyday urban life.




Competition

The key differentiator between HyreCar and our competitors is that we crowd-source vehicles — we do not own or manage vehicles. This allows our
prices to be competitive with other vehicle solutions because we do not have the monthly vehicle overhead or infrastructure costs that our competitors may
have. Other advantages include the following:

1. Pay-As-You-Go: Drivers using our platform are not locked into lengthy lease agreements, monthly contracts or subscription fees. Our payment
model is upfront and transparent. While our competitors engage in auto-debiting payment for the rented vehicle from the Drivers’ accounts,
regardless of their current account balance, under our platform Drivers pay for the term of rental up-front, extend if they are financially able, and
return the rented vehicle whenever they need with no “strings” attached. We are the only company providing this type of fluid and frictionless
car transaction for Uber and Lyft drivers.

2. Convenience: In some cases, drivers are renting a car from their neighbors. They walk down the street, take the keys and go. With Hertz or
Avis, only one or two retail outlets participate in the Uber and Lyft programs.

Among vehicle solutions for ride-sharing rentals, there are Hertz, FlexDrive, Fair and HyreCar. These car rental companies are similar in one way:
they operate in the U.S. and provide cars drivers to rent and drive on the Uber or Lyft platform. However, their business models vary widely. A comparative
analysis of markets, pricing limitations and age requirements are as follows:

HyreCar

@ FLEXDRIVE

fair

Available Markets

All 50 states + DC

ATL, Boston, Chicago, Denver, LA,
Orange County, Miami, New
Orleans, and the San Francisco Bay
Area (May 2018)

ATL, Austin, Houston, LA,
Philadelphia, and San Francisco

Only CA

Rental Minimum

Minimum 2 days rental

Minimum 7-days rental and can only
extend in 7 days increments 3 times
then car has to be returned after 28

Minimum 7 days rental
Disqualified from Express Pay
and driving bonuses

Minimum 7 Days but you can
keep car as long as you want,
after 3days / 100 miles return

days for inspection. policy
None, a Driver can drive for
Service Limitation Lyft, Uber, Uber Eats, Lyft Only Lyft Only Uber Only
DoorDash, Postmates, etc.
Deposit $200 $200 $250 $185.00
Average Weekly | Owners set pricing ~$250 per $240 /week + Tax and Mileage Fee $209/week - takgn directly out $185.00 per Week
Rates week of earnings
Age Requirement 21 25 25 21

Other

Variety of different locations
depending on the market to be
picked up in 24 hours

Not available at all Hertz locations.
Appointments don't always mean
vehicles are available, can take
weeks.

Pick up at CarMax locations.
Must set an appointment days in
advance, can take weeks to get
into a car.

At Fair locations only in CA.
Can pick car up within 48 hours
after lengthy approval process.

Our Strengths

Using our website platform or mobile applications (iOS and Android), vehicle Owners can post their cars to our marketplace and Drivers can browse

car inventory prior to rental. Once a Driver finds a car, he or she creates a profile, enters his or her personal information and credentials (including, address,
city, state, a copy of applicable state issued driver’s license, Uber or Lyft credentials, and SSN) and submits a credit card for payment. We then perform a
criminal background check, DMV driving record check, Homeland Security Watch-list and Sex Offender database check. HyreCar’s screening criteria is
stricter than Uber and Lyft’s background check. We are focused on maintaining a safe user experience and ensuring that all transactions between Owners and
Drivers are processed through a secure web platform.




Why Drivers Use Our Service
e Attractive Market: Drivers’ ability to earn income by driving for a ride-sharing business.
e Pay-As-You-Go: Drivers are not locked into long-term lease agreements, long-term monthly payments or subscription fees.

e Convenience: Drivers can pick up the car from someone close by. Time from registration to getting behind the wheel currently averages under
48 hours.

e Transparency and Trust: There are no hidden fees and only Owners that have been properly screened are permitted to use the platform.

e Customer Experience: Application of game-design elements (i.e. gamification) of the platform keeps Drivers engaged.

Why Owners Use Our Service

Data from a national survey of driving behavior indicates that private vehicles are in use 5% or less during any given day, or about one hour per day.
Given the excess capacity of vehicle hours, higher vehicle utilization rates, and lower vehicle ownership rates, we expect a consumer shift towards acceptance
of car-sharing. Based on the results of the survey, we believe our platform is advantageous for the following reasons:

e DPassive Income: We often match Owners with long term Drivers, which provides the Owners with a steady source of passive income resulting
from our seamless re-booking process.

e Insurance: Liability policy fills the gaps left by personal and ride-sharing policies.

e Review of Drivers: Drivers must pass our extensive background checks and most Drivers have also passed the Uber and Lyft background
checks.

Insurance Coverage

A key component to our business is our commercial auto. The two-sided nature of our platform means that we need to insure both the Driver and the
Owner. Prior to any rental the Driver and Owner are provided an insurance ID card that lists the driver’s name and the vehicle identification number.
Insurance is typically generated twenty-four hours in advance of the commencement of the rental through to when the Owner confirms drop-off of the rented
vehicle by the Driver. The vehicle pick-up and drop-off is all managed through our platform. An Owner takes pictures of his or her vehicle prior to pressing
the “Confirm Pick-up” button on the HyreCar mobile app. (If pictures are not taken and the button is not pressed, it provides grounds for a claim denial;
subsequent liability and/or physical damage rests solely on the Driver and Owner.) After the rental is completed, the Owner presses the “Confirm Drop-off”
button on the HyreCar mobile app and the rental ends.

American Business Insurance Services (“ABI”) is our insurance broker and Y Risk is our mobility-focused managing general underwriter. Y Risk
was sold by our incumbent insurance company American International Group (NYSE: AIG) to The Hartford (NYSE: HIG) in December 2018, and we are in
the process of moving our annual car insurance policy with The Hartford for the plan year from April 2019 to March 2020 under superior pricing and terms.
ABI handles all of our back-end insurance generation and processing through a seamless ABI connection with HyreCar databases. ABI is a top broker in the
United States for the Taxi and Livery business. Mr. David Haley, president of ABI, sits on our strategic advisory board.

For insurance purposes a vehicle rental is broken into four distinct driving periods. Period 0 is when the Driver has picked a vehicle up from the
Owner and is driving with the Uber or Lyft app turned-off. Period 1 is when the Driver has the Uber or Lyft app turned-on, but has not yet accepted a fare.
Period 2 is when the Driver has accepted a fare and is on the way to pick-up a passenger. Period 3 is when a passenger is in the vehicle. The HyreCar policy is
specifically written to cover periods in which the Drivers are operating HyreCar vehicles OFF the Uber or Lyft platform (period 0). During the periods when
Drivers are operating ON the Uber or Lyft platform (periods 1, 2 and 3), the HyreCar insurance subordinates to state mandated insurance provided by Uber
and Lyft. This enables us to keep insurance costs and liability low by leveraging state mandated insurance policies provided by the TNCs.
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Business Structure and Strategy

We operate out of our corporate office in Los Angeles, California. Our technology platform allows for a relatively small staff compared to the size
and reach of our business. For example, we operate in all 50 U.S. States and the District of Columbia with no physical presence in those states, with the
exception of California. Our business structure is divided into three distinct departments: General & Administrative, Sales and Marketing, and Technology.

Sales and Marketing are vital to our future profitability and growth. Most of our customers need to be sold into a car because they are initially
reluctant to pay upfront fees. Early interactions with our customers indicated that if customers were walked through the process once by a member of our
sales and marketing team, the customers were more inclined to use and continue to use our services for a longer period of time. Accordingly, we implemented
a one-man sales team in May 2016 and our revenue rose 93% that month from the prior month. Since then, building a strong sales team has become a priority.

We have expanded the sales team to a total of 33 employees, including 3 managers, which are divided into a Driver team and an Owner team. The
Driver team has a total of 16 sales agents who are split into six sub-teams. Driver team members make approximately 100 calls a day to new customer leads
with a mandate to facilitate drivers into cars via the HyreCar platform. The Owner team has a total of 14 sales agents split evenly into the following three
regions: west coast states, central states and east coast states. The Owner sales team’s primary objective is to get Owners to list their cars on the HyreCar
platform. As the sales team has become more efficient as we have scaled, we don’t expect the need to add headcount as rapidly through 2019 in order for us
to continue to achieve forecasted revenue growth rates.

Leveraging headcount more efficiently is a key assumption that we believe drives profitability. The ability to grow topline revenue without
significant increases to operating expense is achieved through a combination of marketing, sales, support and technology. Attribution of organic bookings is
directly related to the quality of marketing leads generated and user interface/experience enhancements (UI/UX) per technology development. The company’s
expectation is that both aspects contribute to low operating expense growth in relation to revenue, which in-turn, the company believes, will lead to higher
gross profit in 2019.

We currently operate with one technology development team in the United States including multiple full-time developers based out of our home
office in Los Angeles, who are supplemented by one overseas development team in Cambodia. These teams are tasked with maintaining the current site,
addressing bugs in the current code base and small improvements to the Owner and Driver application and website design.

Support and operations underpin the company. Insurance claims management, Owner payment resolutions, Driver payment resolutions, collections,
chat support, email support, phone support, late rentals, car recovery, Driver verifications, insurance generation and insurance verification all work together to
create what we believe is a “best in class” customer service experience. Currently, we have 30 in-house customer support staff. Our plan is to build a domestic
support team that is client-facing and potentially scale by outsourcing as we grow. We believe that customer service is critical to our goal of bringing new
Drivers/Owners onto the platform and retaining those customers who have already utilized our services.

Revenue Model

We generate revenue by taking a fee out of each rental processed on our platform. Each rental transaction represents a Driver renting a car from an
Owner. Drivers pay a weekly rental rate, plus direct insurance costs and a 10% HyreCar fee. Owners receive their weekly rental rate minus a 15% HyreCar
fee. For example, as of December 31, 2018, the average daily rental rate of a HyreCar vehicle is approximately $36.00 (“Daily Rental”), plus a 10% HyreCar
fee ($3.60) and daily direct insurance fee of $13.00, totals $52.60 in total daily gross billings. 85% of the weekly rental or $30.60 or is transferred to the
Owner. HyreCar earns revenues from the two revenue share fees and the insurance totaling $22.00 per day. Accordingly, the GAAP reportable revenue
recognized by HyreCar is $22.00 in this example transaction (as detailed in the table below).

Daily Rental $ 36.00
HyreCar Driver Fee $ 3.60 (10% of Daily Rental)
Insurance $ 13.00
HyreCar Gross Billings $ 52.60
Owner Payment $ 30.60 (85% of Daily Rental)
HyreCar Revenue $ 22.00 (HyreCar Net Revenue)




Gross billings is an important measure by which we evaluate and manage our business. We define gross billings as the amount billed to Drivers,
without any adjustments for amounts paid to Owners or refunds. It is important to note that gross billings is a non-GAAP measure and as such, is not recorded
in our financial statements as revenue. However, we use gross billings to asses our business growth, scale of operations and our ability to generate gross
billings is strongly correlated to our ability to generate revenues. Gross billings may also be used to calculate net revenue margin, defined as the company’s
GAAP reportable revenue over gross billings. Using the definition of net revenue margin and the example above, HyreCar’s net revenue margin is equal to
approximately 43.2% ($9,777,079 HyreCar’s GAAP revenue over $22,645,941 million Total Gross Billings). A breakout of revenue components is provided
in MD&A and financial footnotes.

Marketing Plan

Our marketing team periodically reviews keyword searches using Google Analytics. Thirty keywords and phrases were chosen and analyzed,
allowing the team to determine in which cities the persons searching for the keywords and phrases were located. For example, approximately 400,000 people
in Los Angeles googled key words like, “rent a car for Uber,” “Uber,” and “Uber Leasing.” Overlaying our customer demographics with the Google search
results created a Driver/Owner affinity population of approximately 25 million potential customers, with the bulk of the 25 million concentrated in 16 core
geographic locations. Core geographies represent the top 16 metropolitan statistical areas, or MSAs, in the country based off population count.

Insurance Opportunity

A large percentage of our cost of revenues is direct insurance expense, which we pay to the insurance company. The premiums are broken into two
categories, liability insurance and physical damage. The unique nature of our insurance enables us to keep insurance costs and liability low by leveraging state
mandated insurance policies provided by the TNCs. Our insurance premiums have exceeded liability and physical damage claims throughout 2018, we are in
the process of reviewing coverage options for our policy renewal in April and may pursue self-insurance options.

Current estimates are that in excess of 35% of all commercial property and casualty premiums are in some form of alternative risk structure. We have
explored many forms of alternative risk structures including self-insurance through captive insurance programs and policies. Specifically, cell captives are
entities consisting of a core and an indefinite number of cell entities which are kept legally separate from each other. A captive or protected cell is an ideal
mechanism to deal with a large number of self-insured retention(s). The benefits of having a cell captive include:

e generating a financial return through participating in the risk;

e increased control over potential insurance coverage and costs;

e illustrating to a carrier the willingness to share in the risk; and

e creating more stability in the insurance program.




Based on a 2018 feasibility study into the benefits of insurance captives and ongoing examination of our historical loss runs, we believe that we will
be able to cut direct insurance costs by approximately 30% from 2017 premium levels. A potential 30% reduction in annualized premiums is a significant cost
savings that increases the company’s gross profit margin and we believe it will contribute to company profitability in 2019. The company estimates some
form of insurance cost savings will be in-place by the second quarter of 2019. To the extent the company offers insurance directly, then the company will
disclosure any related revenues on the face of its income statements, in related notes and in the MD&A section of the company’s periodic reports.

In addition to self-insurance, the company is also working with our Managing General Agent (“MGA”) to develop new and innovative insurance
products. The company has proposed a new type of owner “lay-up” insurance and higher insurance level for fleet vehicle owners on the HyreCar platform.
Lay-up insurance replaces the need for an owner’s personal auto insurance policy and would represent significant cost savings when compared to other
insurance options available in the market today. Offering this type of insurance product benefits the company in multiple verticals, including reduced
insurance claim expense, greater customer retention and stickiness to the HyreCar platform. Our MGA has begun piloting lay-up insurance to vehicle owners.

Regulation

The California Public Utilities Commission (“CPUC”) was the first state regulatory body to impose rules and guidelines for ride-sharing in the
United States. The CPUC designated Uber and Lyft as “transportation network companies” or TNCs. The CPUC guidelines became the standard for all states
across the U.S. Most states have adopted some form of the guidelines. California is one of the strictest states when it comes to regulating the TNCs. Our
insurance works within the California guidelines which makes it easily adoptable by future state mandates outside of California.

Changes in government regulation of our business have the potential to materially alter our business practices or our operational results. Depending
on the jurisdiction, those changes may come about through the issuance of new laws and regulations or changes in the interpretation of existing laws and
regulations by a court, regulatory body or governmental official. Sometimes those changes may have not just prospective but also retroactive effect; this is
particularly true when a change is made through reinterpretation of laws or regulations that have been in effect for some time. Moreover, changes in
regulation that may seem neutral on their face may have either more or less impact on us than on ride-sharing businesses, depending on the circumstances.
Potential changes in law or regulation that may affect us relate to insurance intermediaries, customer privacy, data security and rate regulation.

In addition, our operations also could be affected by any limitation in the fuel supply or by any imposition of mandatory allocation or rationing
regulations. We are not aware of any current proposal to impose such a regime in the U.S. or internationally. Such a regime could, however, be quickly
imposed if there was a serious disruption in the fuel supply for any reason, including an act of war, terrorist incident or other problem, such as the devastation
caused by hurricane Harvey, affecting the petroleum supply, refining, distribution or pricing.

Employees
As of March 28, 2019, we employ 87 full-time personnel in our headquarters location in downtown Los Angeles.
Our Corporate Information

We were incorporated as a Delaware corporation on November 24, 2014. Our principal executive offices are located at 355 South Grand Avenue,
Suite 1650, Los Angeles, CA 90071, and our telephone number is (888) 688-6769.

Available Information

Our website address is www.hyrecar.com. The contents of, or information accessible through, our website are not part of this Annual Report on Form
10-K, and our website address is included in this document as an inactive textual reference only. We make our filings with the SEC, including our Annual
Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and all amendments to those reports, available free of charge on our
website as soon as reasonably practicable after we file such reports with, or furnish such reports to, the SEC. The public may read and copy the materials we
file with the SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Washington, DC 20549. The public may also obtain information on the operation
of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. Additionally, the SEC maintains an internet site that contains reports, proxy and
information statements and other information. The address of the SEC’s website is www.sec.gov. The information contained in the SEC’s website is not
intended to be a part of this filing.




Item 1A. Risk Factors

You should carefully consider the risks described below, as well as general economic and business risks and the other information in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K. The occurrence of any of the events or circumstances described below or other adverse events could have a material adverse effect on
our business, results of operations and financial condition and could cause the trading price of our common stock to decline. Additional risks or uncertainties
not presently known to us or that we currently deem immaterial may also harm our business.

Risks Related to Our Business and Our Industry
Our limited operating history makes it difficult to evaluate our current business and prospects and may increase the risks associated with your investment.

We were founded in 2014. Our limited operating history makes it difficult to evaluate our current business and prospects and plan for and model our
future growth. We have encountered and will continue to encounter risks and uncertainties frequently encountered by rapidly growing companies in
developing markets. If our assumptions regarding these risks and uncertainties are incorrect or change in response to changes in the ride-sharing or car-
sharing market, our results of operations and financial results could differ materially from our plans and forecasts. Although we have experienced rapid
growth since our inception, there is no assurance that such growth will continue. Any success we may experience in the future will depend in large part on our
ability to, among other things:

e maintain and expand our customer base and the ways in which customers use our platform;
e expand revenue from existing customers through increased or broader use of our platform;
e improve the performance and capabilities of our platform through research and development;

o effectively expand our business domestically and internationally, which will require that we rapidly expand our sales force and fill key
management positions; and

e successfully compete with other companies that currently provide, or may in the future provide, solutions like ours.

If we are unable to achieve our key objectives, including the objectives listed above, our business and results of operations will be adversely affected
and the fair market value of our securities could decline.

If we do not respond appropriately, the evolution of the automotive industry towards autonomous vehicles and mobility on demand services could
adversely affect our business.

The automotive industry is increasingly focused on the development of advanced driver assistance technologies, with the goal of developing and
introducing a commercially-viable, fully automated driving experience. The high development cost of active safety and autonomous driving technologies may
result in a higher risk of exposure to the success of new or disruptive technologies different than those being developed by us. There has also been an increase
in consumer preferences for mobility on demand services, such as car- and ride-sharing, as opposed to automobile ownership, which may result in a long-term
reduction in the number of vehicles per capita. These evolving areas have also attracted increased competition from entrants outside the traditional automotive
industry. If we do not continue to innovate to develop or acquire new and compelling products that capitalize upon new technologies in response to OEM and
consumer preferences, this could have an adverse impact on our results of operations.

If we do not effectively expand and train our direct sales force, we may be unable to add new customers or increase sales to our existing customers, and
our business will be adversely affected.

We continue to be substantially dependent on our direct sales force to obtain new customers and increase sales with existing customers. There is
significant competition for sales personnel with the skills and technical knowledge that we require. Our ability to achieve significant revenue growth will
depend, in large part, on our success in recruiting, training and retaining sufficient numbers of sales personnel to support our growth. New hires require
significant training and may take significant time before they achieve full productivity. Our recent hires and planned hires may not become productive as
quickly as we expect, and we may be unable to hire or retain sufficient numbers of qualified individuals in the markets where we do business or plan to do
business. In addition, because we continue to grow rapidly, a large percentage of our sales force is new to our company. If we are unable to hire and train a
sufficient number of effective sales personnel, or the sales personnel we hire are not successful in obtaining new customers or increasing sales to our existing
customer base, our business will be adversely affected.




Fluctuating economic conditions make it difficult to predict revenue for a particular period, and a shortfall in revenue may harm our operating results.

Our revenue depends significantly on general economic conditions and the demand for products in the ride-sharing and car-sharing market.
Economic weakness, customer financial difficulties, and constrained spending on ride-sharing may result in decreased revenue and earnings. Such factors
could make it difficult to accurately forecast our sales and operating results.

We have no formal contracts with either Uber or Lyft and our current relationships with either of these companies could change in the future, which
could adversely affect our revenues.

Although we have deployed drivers and cars to the systems of both Uber and Lyft since our operations began in 2015, there is currently no formal
contractual relationship in place with either company. On May 17, 2017, we announced an arrangement with Lyft that allows us to activate our Drivers
through Lyft’s sign-up portal; however, this is an oral arrangement that has not been memorialized in a written agreement. Consequently, each of these
relationships could be discontinued at any time. In addition, virtually all of our revenue is generated by cars and drivers operating on both the Uber or Lyft
platform and therefore this concentration represents a high degree of risk to us and to potential investors.

The ride-sharing model may not continue to grow, which would adversely affect our business.

Our business and future growth is significantly dependent on the continued success of each of Uber, Lyft, and other software-based systems that have
come into the marketplace to compete with standard taxicab transportation organizations.

While the effect of those companies has been to decrease the cost and therefore increase the utilization of ride-sharing, there can be no assurance that
consumer utilization of these systems will continue to grow, or that competition and the resulting price pressure will not undermine the viability of these types
of systems, thereby adversely affecting our business.

Our unique peer to peer structure could be duplicated and our inability to accurately predict user behavior could negatively impact our sales business.

Although to date neither Uber nor Lyft have endeavored to develop a peer-to-peer system to match drivers and car owners as we are doing, there can
be no assurance that either one of these companies or other competitors subsequently entering the marketplace will not endeavor to do so, and there can be no
assurance that such competition will not have a negative impact on our business.

Furthermore, although several attempts to match up fleets of cars owned by operators with Uber and Lyft drivers have failed, there can be no
assurance that other entities will not enter the marketplace on this basis with economic and logistical models that solve the problems that caused this failure.

The market forecasts included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K may prove to be inaccurate, and even if the markets in which we operate achieve
growth, we cannot assure you our business will grow at similar rates, if at all.

Growth forecasts are subject to significant uncertainty and are based on assumptions and estimates, which may not prove to be accurate. Forecasts
relating to the expected growth in the ride-sharing market, including the forecasts or projections referenced in this Annual Report, may prove to be inaccurate.
Even if the ride-sharing market experiences the forecasted growth, we may not grow our business at similar rates, or at all. Our growth is subject to many
factors, including our success in implementing our business strategy, which is subject to many risks and uncertainties. Accordingly, the forecasts of market
growth included in this Annual Report should not be taken as indicative of our future growth.
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We rely on third-party insurance policies to insure auto-related risks. If insurance coverage is insufficient for the needs of our business or our insurance
providers are unable to meet their obligations, we may not be able to mitigate the risks facing our business, which could adversely affect our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

We procure third-party insurance policies which provide coverage for both Owners and Drivers on our platform. If the amount of one or more auto-
related claims were to exceed our applicable aggregate coverage limits, we may bear the excess liability. Insurance providers have raised premiums and
deductibles for many businesses and may do so in the future. As a result, our insurance and claims expense could increase. Our business, financial condition
and results of operations could be adversely affected if (i) cost per claim, premiums or the number of claims significantly exceeds our historical experience
and coverage limits, (ii) we experience a claim in excess of coverage limits, (iii) our insurance providers fail to pay insurance claims, or (iv) we experience a
claim for which coverage is not provided.

Our actual losses may exceed our insurance reserves, which could adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.

We establish insurance reserves for claims incurred but not yet paid and claims incurred but not yet reported and any related estimable expenses, and
we periodically evaluate and, as necessary, adjust our insurance reserves as our experience develops or new information is learned. We employ various
predictive modeling and actuarial techniques and make numerous assumptions based on limited historical experience and industry statistics to estimate our
insurance reserves. Estimating the number and severity of claims, as well as related judgment or settlement amounts, is inherently difficult, subjective, and
speculative. A number of external factors can affect the actual losses incurred for any given claim, including the length of time the claim remains open,
fluctuations in healthcare costs, legislative and regulatory developments and judicial developments. Additionally, we may encounter in the future, instances of
insurance fraud, which could increase our actual insurance-related costs. For any of the foregoing reasons, our actual losses for claims and related expenses
may deviate, individually or in the aggregate, from the insurance reserves reflected in our consolidated financial statements. If we determine that our
estimated insurance reserves are inadequate, we may be required to increase such reserves at the time of the determination, which could result in an increase
to our net loss in the period in which the deficiency is determined and negatively impact our financial condition and results of operations.

Our operations are dependent on our current management. The loss of any member of our management team could adversely affect our operations and
financial results.

We are highly dependent upon the retention of the services of our current executive management team, specifically Joseph Furnari, Michael Furnari,
Scott Brogi, Henry Park, and Abhi Arora. The loss of any one of these individuals could adversely affect our operations and financial results. Our business
also depends on our ability to attract and retain additional highly qualified management, technical, operating, and sales and marketing personnel. We do not
currently maintain key person life insurance policies on any of our employees. We do not have fixed term employment agreements with any of our
management employees, all of whom could terminate their relationship with us at any time.

Our results of operations are likely to vary significantly from period to period, which could cause the price of our common stock to decline.

Our results of operations have varied significantly from period to period. For example, the months of January, February and March are traditionally
very slow for transportation demand. We expect that our results of operations will continue to vary as a result of a number of factors, many of which are
outside of our control and may be difficult to predict, including:

e our ability to attract and retain new customers;

e the budgeting cycles and purchasing practices of customers;

e the timing and success of new service introductions by us or our competitors or any other change in the competitive landscape of the ride-
sharing or car-sharing market, including consolidation among our competitors;

e our ability to successfully expand our business domestically and internationally;

e changes in our pricing policies or those of our competitors;

e any disruption in, or termination of, our relationship with our insurance carriers or ride sharing companies with which we do business;

e the cost and potential outcomes of future litigation, if any;

e seasonality in our business;

e general economic conditions, both domestic and foreign, assuming we expand into foreign markets;

e future accounting pronouncements or changes in our accounting policies or practices; and

e the amount and timing of operating costs and capital expenditures related to the expansion of our business.

Any of the above factors, individually or in the aggregate, may result in significant fluctuations in our financial and other operating results from
period to period. As a result of this variability, our historical results of operations should not be relied upon as an indication of future performance. Moreover,
this variability and unpredictability could result in our failure to meet our operating plan or the expectations of investors or analysts for any period. If we fail

to meet such expectations for these or other reasons, the price of our common stock could fall substantially, and we could face costly lawsuits, including
securities class action suits.
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We have had operating losses each year and quarterly period since our inception, and may not achieve or maintain profitability in the future.

We have incurred operating losses each year and every quarterly period since inception. For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, our
operating loss was $9,158,663, and $4,066,950, respectively. We expect our operating expenses to increase in the future as we expand our sales and marketing
efforts and continue to invest in research and development of our technologies. These efforts may be costlier than we expect, and we may not be able to
increase our revenue to offset our increased operating expenses. Our revenue growth may slow or our revenue may decline for a number of other reasons,
including reduced demand for our services, increased competition, a decrease in the growth or size of the ride-sharing or car-sharing market or any failure to
capitalize on growth opportunities. Any failure to increase our revenue as we grow our business could prevent us from achieving or maintaining profitability.
If we are unable to meet these risks and challenges as we encounter them, our business, financial condition and results of operations may suffer.

We face intense competition and could lose market share to our competitors, which could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

The market for ride-sharing and car-sharing services is intensely competitive and characterized by rapid changes in technology, customer
requirements, industry standards and frequent new service introductions and improvements. We anticipate continued challenges from current competitors, as
well as by new entrants into the industry. If we are unable to anticipate or effectively react to these competitive challenges, our competitive position could
weaken, and we could experience a decline in our growth rate or revenue that could adversely affect our business and results of operations.

Changes in government regulations could have an adverse impact on our business.

Currently, there are few laws regulating our business, however, as our business matures, this may change. Changes in government regulation of our
business have the potential to materially alter our business practices, or our operational results. Depending on the jurisdiction, those changes may come about
through the issuance of new laws and regulations or changes in the interpretation of existing laws and regulations by a court, regulatory body or governmental
official. Sometimes those changes may have not just prospective but also retroactive effect; this is particularly true when a change is made through
reinterpretation of laws or regulations that have been in effect for some time. Moreover, changes in regulation that may seem neutral on their face may have
either more or less impact on us than on ride-sharing businesses, depending on the circumstances. Potential changes in law or regulation that may affect us
relate to insurance intermediaries, customer privacy, data security and rate regulation.

Any material limitation in the fuel supply could adversely affect our business.

Our operations could be adversely affected by any limitation in the fuel supply or by any imposition of mandatory allocation or rationing regulations.
We are not aware of any current proposal to impose such a regime in the U.S. or internationally. Such a regime could, however, be quickly imposed if there
was a serious disruption in the fuel supply for any reason, including an act of war, terrorist incident or other problem, such as the devastation caused by
hurricane Harvey, affecting the petroleum supply, refining, distribution or pricing.

If our security is compromised or if our platform is subjected to attacks that frustrate or thwart our users’ ability to access our products and services, our
users, and partners may cut back on or stop using our products and services altogether, which could seriously harm our business.

Our efforts to protect the information that our users have shared with us may be unsuccessful due to the actions of third parties, software bugs, or
other technical malfunctions, employee error or malfeasance, or other factors. In addition, third parties may attempt to fraudulently induce employees or users
to disclose information to gain access to our data or our users’ data. If any of these events occur, our or our users’ information could be accessed or disclosed
improperly. Our privacy policy governs how we may use and share the information that our users have provided us. Some partners may store information that
we share with them. If these third parties fail to implement adequate data-security practices or fail to comply with our terms and policies, our users’ data may
be improperly accessed or disclosed. And even if these third parties take all these steps, their networks may still suffer a breach, which could compromise our
users’ data. Any incidents where our users’ information is accessed without authorization, or is improperly used, or incidents that violate our terms of service
or policies, could damage our reputation and our brand and diminish our competitive position. In addition, affected users or government authorities could
initiate legal or regulatory action against us over those incidents, which could cause us to incur significant expense and liability or result in orders or consent
decrees forcing us to modify our business practices. Maintaining the trust of our users is important to sustain our growth, retention, and user engagement.
Concerns over our privacy practices, whether actual or unfounded, could damage our reputation and brand and deter users, advertisers, and partners from
using our products and services. Any of these occurrences could seriously harm our business.
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Risks Related to Our Common Stock

The price of our common stock may fluctuate substantially.

You should consider an investment in our common stock to be risky, and you should invest in our common stock only if you can withstand a
significant loss and wide fluctuations in the market value of your investment. Some factors that may cause the market price of our common stock to fluctuate,
in addition to the other risks mentioned in this “Risk Factors” section and elsewhere in this Annual Report, are:

sale of our common stock by our shareholders, executives, and directors;
volatility and limitations in trading volumes of our shares of common stock;

our ability to obtain financings to conduct and complete research and development activities including, but not limited to, our clinical trials, and
other business activities;

the timing and success of introductions of new products by us or our competitors or any other change in the competitive dynamics of our
industry, including consolidation among competitors;

our ability to attract new customers;

changes in our capital structure or dividend policy, future issuances of securities, sales of large blocks of common stock by our shareholders;
our cash position;

announcements and events surrounding financing efforts, including debt and equity securities;

our inability to enter into new markets or develop new products;

reputational issues;

announcements of acquisitions, partnerships, collaborations, joint ventures, new products, capital commitments, or other events by us or our
competitors;

changes in general economic, political and market conditions in or any of the regions in which we conduct our business;
changes in industry conditions or perceptions;

analyst research reports, recommendation and changes in recommendations, price targets, and withdrawals of coverage;
departures and additions of key personnel;

disputes and litigations related to intellectual properties, proprietary rights, and contractual obligations;

changes in applicable laws, rules, regulations, or accounting practices and other dynamics; and

other events or factors, many of which may be out of our control.

In addition, if the market for stocks in our industry or industries related to our industry, or the stock market in general, experiences a loss of investor
confidence, the trading price of our common stock could decline for reasons unrelated to our business, financial condition and results of operations. If any of
the foregoing occurs, it could cause our stock price to fall and may expose us to lawsuits that, even if unsuccessful, could be costly to defend and a distraction
to management.
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We may acquire other companies or technologies, which could divert our management’s attention, result in dilution to our stockholders and otherwise
disrupt our operations and adversely affect our operating results.

We may in the future seek to acquire or invest in businesses, applications and services or technologies that we believe could complement or expand
our services, enhance our technical capabilities or otherwise offer growth opportunities. The pursuit of potential acquisitions may divert the attention of
management and cause us to incur various expenses in identifying, investigating and pursuing suitable acquisitions, whether or not they are consummated.

In addition, we do not have any experience in acquiring other businesses. If we acquire additional businesses, we may not be able to integrate the
acquired personnel, operations and technologies successfully, or effectively manage the combined business following the acquisition. We also may not
achieve the anticipated benefits from the acquired business due to a number of factors, including:

e inability to integrate or benefit from acquired technologies or services in a profitable manner;

e unanticipated costs or liabilities associated with the acquisition;

e difficulty integrating the accounting systems, operations and personnel of the acquired business;

e difficulties and additional expenses associated with supporting legacy products and hosting infrastructure of the acquired business;

e difficulty converting the customers of the acquired business onto our platform and contract terms, including disparities in the revenue, licensing,
support or professional services model of the acquired company;

e diversion of management’s attention from other business concerns;

e adverse effects to our existing business relationships with business partners and customers as a result of the acquisition;
e the potential loss of key employees;

e use of resources that are needed in other parts of our business; and

e use of substantial portions of our available cash to consummate the acquisition.

In addition, a significant portion of the purchase price of companies we acquire may be allocated to acquired goodwill and other intangible assets,
which must be assessed for impairment at least annually. In the future, if our acquisitions do not yield expected returns, we may be required to take charges to
our operating results based on this impairment assessment process, which could adversely affect our results of operations.

Acquisitions could also result in dilutive issuances of equity securities or the incurrence of debt, which could adversely affect our operating results.
In addition, if an acquired business fails to meet our expectations, our operating results, business and financial position may suffer.

Market and economic conditions may negatively impact our business, financial condition and share price.

Concerns over inflation, energy costs, geopolitical issues, the U.S. mortgage market and a declining real estate market, unstable global credit markets
and financial conditions, and volatile oil prices have led to periods of significant economic instability, diminished liquidity and credit availability, declines in
consumer confidence and discretionary spending, diminished expectations for the global economy and expectations of slower global economic growth going
forward, increased unemployment rates, and increased credit defaults in recent years. Our general business strategy may be adversely affected by any such
economic downturns, volatile business environments and continued unstable or unpredictable economic and market conditions. If these conditions continue to
deteriorate or do not improve, it may make any necessary debt or equity financing more difficult to complete, more costly, and more dilutive. Failure to secure
any necessary financing in a timely manner and on favorable terms could have a material adverse effect on our growth strategy, financial performance, and
share price and could require us to delay or abandon development or commercialization plans.

If securities or industry analysts do not publish research or reports, or publish unfavorable research or reports about our business, our stock price and
trading volume may decline.

The trading market for our common stock will rely in part on the research and reports that industry or financial analysts publish about us, our
business, our markets and our competitors. We do not control these analysts. If securities analysts do not cover our common stock, the lack of research
coverage may adversely affect the market price of our common stock. Furthermore, if one or more of the analysts who do cover us downgrade our stock or if
those analysts issue other unfavorable commentary about us or our business, our stock price would likely decline. If one or more of these analysts cease
coverage of us or fails to regularly publish reports on us, we could lose visibility in the market and interest in our stock could decrease, which in turn could
cause our stock price or trading volume to decline and may also impair our ability to expand our business with existing customers and attract new customers.
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Future sales and issuances of our securities could result in additional dilution of the percentage ownership of our shareholders and could cause our
share price to fall.

We expect that significant additional capital will be needed in the future to continue our planned operations, including research and development,
increased marketing, hiring new personnel, commercializing our products and services, and continuing activities as an operating public company. To the
extent we raise additional capital by issuing equity securities, our shareholders may experience substantial dilution. We may sell common stock, convertible
securities or other equity securities in one or more transactions at prices and in a manner we determine from time to time. If we sell common stock,
convertible securities or other equity securities in more than one transaction, investors may be materially diluted by subsequent sales. Such sales may also
result in material dilution to our existing shareholders, and new investors could gain rights superior to our existing shareholders.

We do not intend to pay cash dividends on our shares of common stock so any returns will be limited to the value of our shares.

We currently anticipate that we will retain future earnings for the development, operation and expansion of our business and do not anticipate
declaring or paying any cash dividends for the foreseeable future. Any return to shareholders will therefore be limited to the increase, if any, of our share
price.

We are an “emerging growth company” and will be able to avail ourselves of reduced disclosure requirements applicable to emerging growth companies,
which could make our common stock less attractive to investors.

We are an “emerging growth company,” as defined in the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012 (the “JOBS Act”), and we intend to take
advantage of certain exemptions from various reporting requirements that are applicable to other public companies that are not “emerging growth companies”
including not being required to comply with the auditor attestation requirements of Section 404(b) of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, reduced disclosure obligations
regarding executive compensation in our periodic reports and proxy statements, and exemptions from the requirements of holding a nonbinding advisory vote
on executive compensation and shareholder approval of any golden parachute payments not previously approved. In addition, pursuant to Section 107 of the
JOBS Act, as an “emerging growth company” we intend to take advantage of the extended transition period provided in Section 7(a)(2)(B) of the Securities
Act, for complying with new or revised accounting standards. In other words, an “emerging growth company” can delay the adoption of certain accounting
standards until those standards would otherwise apply to private companies. We cannot predict if investors will find our common stock less attractive because
we may rely on these exemptions. If some investors find our common stock less attractive as a result, there may be a less active trading market for our
common stock and our stock price may be more volatile. We may take advantage of these reporting exemptions until we are no longer an “emerging growth
company.” We will remain an “emerging growth company” until the earliest of (i) the last day of the fiscal year in which we have total annual gross revenues
of $1.07 billion or more; (ii) the last day of our fiscal year following the fifth anniversary of the date of the completion of this offering; (iii) the date on which
we have issued more than $1 billion in nonconvertible debt during the previous three years; or (iv) the date on which we are deemed to be a large accelerated
filer under the rules of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission.

We may be at risk of securities class action litigation.
We may be at risk of securities class action litigation. In the past, technology companies have experienced significant stock price volatility. If we face

such litigation, it could result in substantial costs and a diversion of management’s attention and resources, which could harm our business and results in a
decline in the market price of our common stock.
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Financial reporting obligations of being a public company in the United States are expensive and time-consuming, and our management will be required
to devote substantial time to compliance matters.

As a publicly traded company we will incur significant additional legal, accounting and other expenses that we did not incur as a privately company.
The obligations of being a public company in the United States require significant expenditures and will place significant demands on our management and
other personnel, including costs resulting from public company reporting obligations under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange
Act”) and the rules and regulations regarding corporate governance practices, including those under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (“Sarbanes-Oxley”) the
Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act, and the listing requirements of the stock exchange on which our securities are listed. These
rules require the establishment and maintenance of effective disclosure and financial controls and procedures, internal control over financial reporting and
changes in corporate governance practices, among many other complex rules that are often difficult to implement, monitor and maintain compliance with.
Moreover, despite recent reforms made possible by the JOBS Act, the reporting requirements, rules, and regulations will make some activities more time-
consuming and costly, particularly after we are no longer an “emerging growth company.” In addition, we expect these rules and regulations to make it more
difficult and more expensive for us to obtain director and officer liability insurance. Our management and other personnel will need to devote a substantial
amount of time to ensure that we comply with all of these requirements and to keep pace with new regulations, otherwise we may fall out of compliance and
risk becoming subject to litigation or being delisted, among other potential problems.

If we fail to comply with the rules under Sarbanes-Oxley related to accounting controls and procedures in the future, or, if we discover material
weaknesses and other deficiencies in our internal control and accounting procedures, our stock price could decline significantly and raising capital could
be more difficult.

Section 404 of Sarbanes-Oxley requires annual management assessments of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting. If we
fail to comply with the rules under Sarbanes-Oxley related to disclosure controls and procedures in the future, or, if we discover material weaknesses and
other deficiencies in our internal control and accounting procedures, our stock price could decline significantly and raising capital could be more difficult. If
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies are discovered or if we otherwise fail to achieve and maintain the adequacy of our internal control, we may not
be able to ensure that we can conclude on an ongoing basis that we have effective internal controls over financial reporting in accordance with Section 404 of
Sarbanes-Oxley. Moreover, effective internal controls are necessary for us to produce reliable financial reports and are important to helping prevent financial
fraud. If we cannot provide reliable financial reports or prevent fraud, our business and operating results could be harmed, investors could lose confidence in
our reported financial information, and the trading price of our common stock could drop significantly.

Comprehensive tax reform bills could adversely affect our business and financial condition.

The U.S. government recently enacted comprehensive federal income tax legislation that includes significant changes to the taxation of business
entities. These changes include, among others, a permanent reduction to the corporate income tax rate. Notwithstanding the reduction in the corporate income
tax rate, the overall impact of this tax reform is uncertain, and our business and financial condition could be adversely affected. This Annual Report does not
discuss any such tax legislation or the manner in which it might affect purchasers of our common stock. We urge our shareholders to consult with their legal
and tax advisors with respect to any such legislation and the potential tax consequences of investing in our common stock.

Anti-takeover provisions in our charter documents and under the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware could make an acquisition of us
more difficult and may prevent attempts by our stockholders to replace or remove our management.

Provisions in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and our bylaws may delay or prevent an acquisition of us or a change in our
management. These provisions include a classified board of directors, a prohibition on actions by written consent of our stockholders, and the ability of the
board of directors to issue preferred stock without stockholder approval. In addition, because we are incorporated in Delaware, we are governed by the
provisions of Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, or the DGCL, which prohibits stockholders owning in excess of 15% of the outstanding
combined organization voting stock from merging or combining with the combined organization. Although we believe these provisions collectively will
provide for an opportunity to receive higher bids by requiring potential acquirers to negotiate with our board of directors, they would apply even if the offer
may be considered beneficial by some stockholders. In addition, these provisions may frustrate or prevent any attempts by our stockholders to replace or
remove then-current management by making it more difficult for stockholders to replace members of the board of directors, which is responsible for
appointing the members of management.
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Anti-takeover provisions in our charter documents could discourage, delay or prevent a change in control of us and may dffect the trading price of our
common stock.

Our corporate documents and the DGCL contain provisions that may enable our board of directors to resist a change in control of us even if a change
in control were to be considered favorable by our stockholders. These provisions:

e stagger the terms of our board of directors and require 66 and 2/3% stockholder voting to remove directors, who may only be removed for
cause;

e authorize our board of directors to issue “blank check” preferred stock and to determine the rights and preferences of those shares, which may be
senior to our common stock, without prior stockholder approval;

e establish advance notice requirements for nominating directors and proposing matters to be voted on by stockholders at stockholders’ meetings;
e prohibit our stockholders from calling a special meeting and prohibit stockholders from acting by written consent;

e require 66 and 2/3% stockholder voting to effect certain amendments to our certificate of incorporation and bylaws; and

e prohibit cumulative voting in the election of directors, which limits the ability of minority stockholders to elect director candidates.

These provisions could discourage, delay or prevent a transaction involving a change in control of us. These provisions could also discourage proxy
contests and make it more difficult for stockholders to elect directors of their choosing and cause us to take other corporate actions our stockholders desire.

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation designates the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware as the sole and exclusive forum for
certain types of actions and proceedings that may be initiated by our stockholders, which could limit our stockholders’ ability to obtain a favorable
judicial forum for disputes with us or our directors, officers, employees or agents.

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation provides that, unless we consent in writing to an alternative forum, the Court of Chancery of
the State of Delaware will be the sole and exclusive forum for any derivative action or proceeding brought on our behalf, any action asserting a claim of
breach of a fiduciary duty owed by any of our directors, officers, employees or agents to us or our stockholders, any action asserting a claim arising pursuant
to any provision of the DGCL, our amended and restated certificate of incorporation or our amended and restated bylaws or any action asserting a claim that
is governed by the internal affairs doctrine, in each case subject to the Court of Chancery having personal jurisdiction over the indispensable parties named as
defendants therein and the claim not being one which is vested in the exclusive jurisdiction of a court or forum other than the Court of Chancery or for which
the Court of Chancery does not have subject matter jurisdiction. Any person purchasing or otherwise acquiring any interest in any shares of our common
stock shall be deemed to have notice of and to have consented to this provision of our amended and restated certificate of incorporation. This choice of forum
provision may limit our stockholders’ ability to bring a claim in a judicial forum that it finds favorable for disputes with us or our directors, officers,
employees or agents, which may discourage such lawsuits against us and our directors, officers, employees and agents even though an action, if successful,
might benefit our stockholders. Stockholders who do bring a claim in the Court of Chancery could face additional litigation costs in pursuing any such claim,
particularly if they do not reside in or near Delaware. The Court of Chancery may also reach different judgments or results than would other courts, including
courts where a stockholder considering an action may be located or would otherwise choose to bring the action, and such judgments or results may be more
favorable to us than to our stockholders. Alternatively, if a court were to find this provision of our amended and restated certificate of incorporation
inapplicable to, or unenforceable in respect of, one or more of the specified types of actions or proceedings, we may incur additional costs associated with
resolving such matters in other jurisdictions, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

-16-




Item 2. Properties

Our corporate headquarters are located in Los Angeles, California. Our lease for this office space expires in 2021. We believe that our existing
facilities are suitable and adequate to meet our current needs. We intend to add new facilities or expand existing facilities as we add employees, and we
believe that suitable additional or substitute space will be available as needed to accommodate any such expansion of our operations.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

Except as may be set forth below, we are not a party to any legal proceedings, and we are not aware of any claims or actions pending or threatened
against us. In the future, we might from time to time become involved in litigation relating to claims arising from our ordinary course of business, the
resolution of which we do not anticipate would have a material adverse impact on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In September 2015, two former founders (the “Claimant Founders”) made an arbitration claim against the Company for alleged violations of an
agreement among the founders of the Company (the “Founders’ Agreement”). The Claimant Founders and the Company arbitrated the dispute but, prior to
the arbitrator rendering a decision, the Company and the Claimant Founders settled the dispute without any party admitting liability or fault. Under the terms
of the April 25, 2016 settlement (the “Settlement Agreement”), each of the Claimant Founders would maintain 190,177 shares of their common stock
restricted per the Founders’ Agreement and with certain additional restrictions. Additionally, the Claimant Founders agreed to remit the remaining balance of
stock previously held by them back to the Company. The Settlement Agreement provided that the Claimant Founders’ stock ownership would be diluted
upon subsequent money raises, stock option offerings, and stock option vesting, however, any dilution would remain consistent and proportional to the
remaining founders’ dilution ratios. The claimants also received a total of $110,000 paid out over eighteen (18) months starting on November 1, 2016. The
remaining balance of $24,444 owed as of December 31, 2017 to the Claimant Founders under the Settlement Agreement was paid in 2018 and no additional
monies are now due under the Settlement Agreement.

Thereafter, on November 13, 2018, the same two Claimant Founders, initiated two lawsuits in the Superior Court of California, County of San
Francisco, entitled Nathaniel Farber v. HyreCar Inc., Case No. CGC-18-571257 and Josiah Larkin v. HyreCar Inc., Case No. CGC-18-571258. The
complaints for the lawsuits, which were largely duplicative, allege that the Company breached the Settlement Agreement by not allowing the Claimant
Founders to sell stock in the initial public offering (“IPO”) of the Company, failing to offer to buyback Claimant Founders’ stock at the time of the IPO,
allowing the issuance of certain stock without proportionately increasing the stock ownership of Claimant Founders, and not providing certain required
information to the Claimant Founders. The Company very strongly disagrees with all of the allegations and intends to vigorously contest both lawsuits. The
Company believes that, at all times, its actions have been consistent with the terms, conditions, and context of the Settlement Agreement, as well as applicable
law. At this time, the lawsuits are in their early stages and the Company is unable to estimate potential damage exposures, if there are any, related to the
lawsuits.

In July 2017, an owner of several vehicles that he was renting through the Company’s platform filed for arbitration seeking damages for losses
associated with renting his vehicles, specifically losses associated with a claimed stolen vehicle, storage fees, damage/repair fees, an insurance deductible, and
purported loss of income due to his inability to rent the stolen/damaged vehicles. In December 2017, the owner also filed a lawsuit in the Superior Court of
California, County of Los Angeles, reasserting the same claims. The Company believes this action is without merit and is vigorously defending itself, while
also exploring whether the dispute can be settled in an expeditious manner. The Company moved to compel the owner to arbitrate his claims and to stay his
Superior Court case. That motion was heard on June 19, 2018 and the court granted the motion to compel arbitration. As of January 29, 2019, the arbitrator
issued a decision to award nothing to the owner. The arbitrator upheld the enforceability of the Company’s terms of service and made clear that they
precluded damages sought by the owner and dismissed the owner’s tort claims as unmeritorious.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.
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Part 11
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
Market Information

On June 27, 2018, our common stock began trading on the Nasdaq Capital Market under the symbol “HYRE.” Prior to that time, there was no public
market for our common stock.

Use of Proceeds from Registered Offerings

On June 29, 2018, we completed an initial public offering, or IPO, of our common stock pursuant to which we issued and sold 2,520,000 shares of
our common stock at a price to the public of $5.00 per share. All of the shares of common stock issued and sold in our IPO were registered under the
Securities Act pursuant to a registration statement on Form S-1 (Registration No. 333-225157), which was declared effective by the SEC on June 26, 2018.
We received net proceeds of approximately $10,770,335, after deducting underwriting discounts and commissions and offering expenses borne by us. None of
the expenses incurred by us were direct or indirect payments to any of (i) our directors or officers or their associates, (ii) persons owning 10 percent or more
of our common stock, or (iii) our affiliates. Network 1 Financial Securities, Inc. acted as the underwriters’ representative for the offering.

As of December 31, 2018, we have used approximately $4.0 million of the net proceeds from the IPO primarily to expand the business by increasing
marketing and technology spends. Such uses are consistent with the planned use of proceeds described in our prospectus dated June 26, 2018 filed with the
SEC on June 28, 2018 pursuant to Rule 424(b) under the Securities Act.

Stockholders

As of March 28, 2019, there were 32 stockholders of record of our common stock. The actual number of holders of our common stock is greater than
this number of record holders, and includes stockholders who are beneficial owners, but whose shares are held in street name by brokers or held by other
nominees. This number of holders of record also does not include stockholders whose shares may be held in trust by other entities.

Dividend Policy

We have never paid or declared any cash dividends on our common stock, and we do not anticipate paying any cash dividends on our common stock
in the foreseeable future. We intend to retain all available funds and any future earnings to fund the development and expansion of our business. Any future
determination to pay dividends will be at the discretion of our board of directors and will depend upon a number of factors, including our results of
operations, financial condition, future prospects, contractual restrictions, restrictions imposed by applicable law and other factors that our board of directors
deems relevant.

Equity Compensation Plans

The information required by Item 5 of Form 10-K regarding equity compensation plans is incorporated herein by reference to Item 12 of Part III of
this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
We did not purchase any of our registered equity securities during the period covered by this Annual Report.
Item 6. Selected Financial Data

As a smaller reporting company, as such term is defined in 17 C.F.R. 229.10, we are not required to provide disclosure for this item.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

You should read the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations together with our audited financial
statements and the related notes and other financial information included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Some of the information contained
in this discussion and analysis or set forth elsewhere in this Annual Report, including information with respect to our plans and strategy for our business,
include forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. You should review “Risk Factors” for a discussion of important factors that could
cause our actual results to differ materially from the results described in or implied by the forward-looking statements contained in the following discussion
and analysis.

Our Company

We operate in the car sharing marketplace for ride sharing through our proprietary platform. The Company has established a leading presence in
Mobility as a Service (MaaS) through vehicle owners and institutions, such as franchise car dealerships, independent car dealerships and rental car
companies, who have been disrupted by automotive asset sharing. We are based in Los Angeles, California but car owners and drivers can currently use the
platform in all 50 states plus the District of Columbia. We believe our unique revenue opportunity for both owners (“Owners”) and drivers (“Drivers”) is
providing a safe, secure, and reliable marketplace.

We categorize our operations into one reportable business segment: Rental, consisting primarily of our vehicle rental operations in the United States.
Business and Trends

We primarily generate revenue by taking a fee from each rental processed on our platform and through insurance related fees. Each rental transaction
represents a Driver renting a car from an Owner. Drivers pay a daily, weekly or monthly rental rate, plus direct insurance costs and a 10% HyreCar fee, while
Owners receive their rental rate minus a 15% HyreCar fee.

Gross billings are an important measure by which we evaluate and manage our business. We define gross billings as the amount billed to Drivers,
without any adjustments for amounts paid to Owners, refunds or rebates. Gross billings include transactions from both our revenues recorded on a net and a
gross basis. It is important to note that gross billings is a non-U.S. GAAP measure and as such, is not recorded in our financial statements as revenue.
However, we use gross billings to asses our business growth, scale of operations and our ability to generate gross billings is strongly correlated to our ability
to generate revenues. Gross billings may also be used to calculate net revenue margin, defined as the Company’s U.S. GAAP reportable revenue over gross
billings. Using the definition of net revenue margin, HyreCar’s net revenue margin has increased to approximately 43.2% ($9,777,079 HyreCar’s 2018 U.S.
GAAP revenue over $22,645,941 2018 Total Gross Billings).
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Our operating results are subject to variability due to seasonality, macroeconomic conditions and other factors. Car rental volumes tend to be
associated with driving holidays, where there is an influx of Uber/Lyft demand. Thus far in 2018, we have continued to operate in an uncertain and uneven
economic environment marked by heightened geopolitical risks. Nonetheless, we continue to anticipate that demand for vehicle rental and car sharing
services will increase in 2018, most likely against a backdrop of modest and uneven global economic growth.

Our objective is to focus on strategically accelerating our growth, strengthening our position as a leading provider of vehicle rental services to Uber
and Lyft drivers, continuing to enhance our customers’ rental experience, and controlling costs and driving efficiency throughout the organization. We operate
in a high growth industry and we expect to continue to face challenges and risks. We seek to mitigate our exposure to risks in numerous ways, including
delivering upon our core strategic initiatives, continued growth of fleet levels to match changes in demand for vehicle rentals, and appropriate investments in
technology.

During 2018:
e  Our net revenues totaled approximately $9,777,079 during the year ended December 31, 2018 and increased 203.3% compared to the total of
$3,223,874 for the year ended December 31, 2017 as a result of higher business levels as demonstrated by approximately 393,000 rental days

and increased rental volumes.

e In the year ended December 31, 2018, our net loss was approximately $11,243,903, as compared to $4,271,732 for the year ended December 31,
2017, representing an increase in net loss of $6,972,171.

Management’s Plan
We have incurred operating losses since Inception and historically relied on debt and equity financing for working capital. Throughout the next 12
months, the Company intends to fund its operations through increased revenue from operations and the funds raised through the Company’s IPO. We have

increased our annualized run rate of rental days to approximately 550,000 through the first 60 days of 2019, so based on increasing revenues and margins
through the normal course of business, as well as our current capital, we believe the Company’s has sufficient resources to operate its business.

-20-




Components of Our Results of Operations
The following describes the various components that make up our results of operations, discussed below:

Revenue is earned from fees associated with matching Drivers to Owners of idle cars that meet the strict requirements imposed by ride-sharing
services such as Uber and Lyft with Drivers. A Driver will typically rent a car through one transaction via our on-line marketplace. We recognize GAAP
reportable revenue primarily from a transaction fee and an insurance fee when a car is rented on our platform when (a) persuasive evidence that an agreement
exists which occurs when the rental contract is signed electronically between the two parties involved; (b) the services have been delivered; (c) the prices are
fixed and determinable and not subject to refund or adjustment; and (d) collection of the amounts due is reasonably assured which occurs simultaneously
when the booking is accepted and the credit card or account on file is charged. The company defers revenue where the earnings process is not yet complete.

Cost of revenues primarily include direct fees paid for driver insurance, merchant processing fees, and motor vehicle record fees incurred for paid
driver applications.

General and administrative costs include all corporate and administrative functions that support our business. These costs also include stock-based
compensation expense, consulting costs, and other costs that are not included in cost of revenues. Research and development costs are related to activities
such as user experience and user interphase development, database development and maintenance and any technology related expense that improves and
maintains the functionality of our existing platform.

Other income/expense includes non-operating income and expenses including interest income and expense.
Results of Operations
December 31, 2018 compared to December 31, 2017

Revenues and Gross Profit. Gross profit of $4,645,000, or approximately 47.5%, was realized on revenues totaling $9,777,079 for the year ended
December 31, 2018 as compared to gross profit of $311,326, or approximately 9.7%, realized on revenues totaling $3,223,874 for the year ended December
31, 2017. The increase in revenues of $6,553,205, or approximately 203.3%, was due to the growth of our business, which resulted from the expansion of our
sales team, increased marketing spend and brand awareness.

Operating Expenses. Operating expenses, consisting of general and administrative, sales and marketing, and research and development expenses,
increased by $9,425,387 to $13,803,663 for the year ended December 31, 2018, as compared to operating expenses of $4,378,276 for the year ended
December 31, 2017. The increase in operating expenses was related to the scaling of our business across all functional areas. Our general and administrative
expenses increased by $5,781,147 to $7,600,735, primarily as a result of our new headquarters office space in downtown Los Angeles where all our
operations are currently housed, salaries, legal, operations and support functions. Our sales and marketing expenses increased by $2,916,552 to $4,788,201
which is primarily attributable to an increase in digital advertising, a dramatic increase to the sales team and addition of customer relationship management
systems. The remaining difference is attributable to growth in the technology team by $727,688 to $1,414,727 related to the enhancement and maintenance of
our digital marketplace technology platform.

Loss from Operations. Our loss from operations for the year ended December 31, 2018 was $9,158,663 as compared to a loss from operations of
$4,066,950 for the year ended December 31, 2017. The increased operating loss during 2018 is a direct result of the increased operating costs due to a higher
scale of business levels noted above.

Other (Income) Expense. For the year ended December 31, 2018, interest expense totaled $2,040,311 as compared to interest expense of $202,454
for the year ended December 31, 2017. The increase was a result of interest charges for beneficial conversion features on convertible debt and the
amortization of debt discounts in 2018, those charges no longer exist going forward after the IPO. In 2017, interest related to the recognition of a beneficial
conversion feature totaling $134,108, stated rate of interest on convertible debt outstanding, along with other minor interest charges. Other income and
expense during the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 was de minimis.

Net Loss. Primarily as a result of the increased operating expenses noted above, together with the interest expense incurred during 2018, our net loss
for the year ended December 31, 2018 was $11,243,903 as compared to a net loss for the year ended December 31, 2017 of $4,271,732.

Non-GAAP Financial Measure — Gross Billings

Gross billings is an important measure by which we evaluate and manage our business. We define gross billings as the amount billed to Drivers,
without any adjustments for amounts paid to Owners or refunds. Gross billings include transactions from both our revenues recorded on a net and a gross
basis. It is important to note that gross billings is a non-GAAP measure and as such, is not recorded in our financial statements as revenue. However, we use
gross billings to asses our business growth, scale of operations and our ability to generate gross billings is strongly correlated to our ability to generate
revenues. Gross billings may also be used to calculate net revenue margin, defined as the company’s GAAP reportable revenue over gross billings.
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The table below sets forth a reconciliation of our GAAP reported revenues to gross billings for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017:

2018 2017
Revenues (GAAP reported revenue) $ 9,777,079 $ 3,223,874
Add: Refunds, rebates and deferred revenue 903,822 766,487
Add: Owner payments (not recorded in financial statements) 11,965,040 5,030,933
Gross billings (non-GAAP measure not recorded in financial statements) $ 22645941 $ 9,021,294

Liquidity and Capital Resources

At December 31, 2018, our cash balance totaled $6,764,870 compared to $213,944 at December 31, 2017. This increase was a result of our IPO in
which the Company issued and sold 2,520,000 shares of common stock at $5.00 per share for gross proceeds of $12,600,000, net of underwriters’ discounts
and commissions totaling $1,260,000. Accordingly, net proceeds from the IPO totaled $11,340,000, before deducting offering costs of $569,665. As of March
28, 2019, our cash balance totaled over $6,000,000, meaning that our quarterly cash burn has been reduced to approximately $500,000 for the first fiscal
quarter of 2019.

At December 31, 2018, our current assets totaled $7,075,311 and our current liabilities totaled $2,044,617 resulting in working capital of $5,030,694
compared to a working capital deficit of $1,337,331 at December 31, 2017. This deficit resulted primarily from a lack of operating capital. Throughout the
next 12 months, the Company intends to fund its operations through increased revenue from operations and the funds raised through the IPO. Based on our
current capital and ability to reduce cash burn if needed, as well as the increasing revenues through normal course of business, the Company believes it has
sufficient capital to operate for the next twelve (12) months.

We do not have any contractual obligations for ongoing capital expenditures at this time.

Operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2018 resulted in cash outflows of $6,515,069 which were due primarily to the loss for the
period of $11,243,903, partially offset by non-cash charges including $2,280,842 in stock-based compensation and 1,515,191 from amortization of debt
discount.

Operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2017 resulted in cash outflows of $2,517,530, which was due primarily to the loss for the
period, partially offset by non-cash charges including $336,681 in stock-based compensation.

Investing activities for the year ended December 31, 2018 resulted in cash outflows of $197,676 consisting of purchases of property and equipment
and investment in internally developed software, reduced by the return of our prior lease deposit.

Investing activities for the year ended December 31, 2017 resulted in cash outflows of $142,979 consisting of net outflows related to our insurance
deposit and a deposit under our prior lease.

Net cash provided by financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2018 totaled $13,263,672 and primarily consisted of net proceeds of
$11,340,000 related to the June 2018 IPO, $2,778,579 in net proceeds from convertible debt, less offering costs of $569,665 and repayments on notes payable
totaling $350,000.

Net cash provided by financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2017 totaled $2,358,291 and primarily included $2,164,029 from the sale
of common stock, $350,000 from notes payable and $300,000 from the sale of preferred stock.

Critical Accounting Policies, Judgments and Estimates
Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could materially
differ from these estimates. It is reasonably possible that changes in estimates will occur in the near term.

The Company’s most significant estimates and judgments involve recognition of revenue, insurance reserves, the measurement of the Company’s
stock-based compensation, including the estimation of the underlying deemed fair value of common stock in periods prior to the date of the Company’s IPO,
the estimation of the fair value of market-based awards, the valuation of warrants, allowance for doubtful accounts, estimates for future contingent customer
incentive obligations, and the fair value of financial instruments.

Stock Based Compensation
The company accounts for stock options issued to employees under ASC 718, Compensation — Stock Compensation. Under ASC 718, share-based
compensation cost to employees is measured at the grant date, based on the estimated fair value of the award, and is recognized as expense over the

employee’s requisite vesting period. The fair value of each stock option or warrant award is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option
valuation model.
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The company measures compensation expense for its non-employee stock-based compensation under ASC 505, Equity. The fair value of the option
issued or committed to be issued is used to measure the transaction, as this is more reliable than the fair value of the services received. The fair value is
measured at the value of the company’s common stock or equity award on the date that the commitment for performance by the counterparty has been
reached or the counterparty’s performance is complete. The fair value of the equity instrument is charged directly to stock-based compensation expense and
credited to additional paid-in capital.

Revenue Recognition

The company recognizes revenue primarily from a transaction fee and an insurance fee when a car is rented on the company’s platform when (a)
persuasive evidence that an agreement exists which occurs when the rental contract is signed electronically between the two parties involved; (b) the services
have been delivered; (c) the prices are fixed and determinable and not subject to refund or adjustment; and (d) collection of the amounts due is reasonably
assured which occurs simultaneously when the booking is accepted and the credit card on file is charged. The company defers revenue where the earnings
process is not yet complete.

The company also recognizes revenue from other sources such as referrals, motor vehicle record fees (application fees), late rental fees, and other
fees charged to Drivers in specific situations.

In limited circumstances, the company provides contingent consideration in the form of a rebate or refund that is redeemable only if the customer
completes a specific level of transaction over a specific time period. In such cases, the rebate or refund obligation is recognized as a reduction of revenues.

Measurement of the total rebate or refund obligation is based on management estimates using historical data.

The following is a breakout of revenue components by subcategory for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017.

Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 31,
2018 2017

Insurance and administration fees $ 5,090,441 $ 1,650,512
Transaction fees 3,479,004 1,465,426
Other fees 1,557,084 212,077
Incentives and rebates (349,450) (104,141)
Net revenue $ 9,777,079 $ 3,223,874

Transaction fees and insurance fees are charged to a Driver in a single transaction. Drivers currently do not have an option to decline insurance at
any point during the transaction.

Principal Agent Considerations

In accordance with ASC 605-45, Revenue Recognition: Principal Agent Considerations, we evaluate our service offerings to determine if we are
acting as the principal or as an agent, which we consider in determining if revenue should be reported gross or net. Our primary revenue source is a
transaction fee made from a confirmed booking of a vehicle on our platform. Key indicators that we evaluate to reach this determination include:

e the terms and conditions of our contracts;

e whether we are paid a fixed percentage of the arrangement’s consideration or a fixed fee for each transaction;

e the party which sets the pricing with the end-user, has the credit risk and provides customer support; and

e the party responsible for delivery/fulfillment of the product or service to the end consumer.
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We have determined that we act as the agent in the transaction for vehicle bookings, as we are not the primarily obligor of the arrangement and
receive a fixed percentage of the transaction. Therefore, revenue is recognized on a net basis.

For other fees such as insurance fees and motor vehicle records (application fees) we have determined that revenue should be recorded on a gross
basis. In such arrangements, the company sets pricing, has risk of economic loss, has certain credit risk, provides support services related to these
transactions, and has decision making ability about service providers used.

Income Taxes

The company applies ASC 740 “Income Taxes” (“ASC 740”). Deferred income taxes are recognized for the tax consequences in future years of
differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their financial statement reported amounts at each period end, based on enacted tax laws and
statutory tax rates applicable to the periods in which the differences are expected to affect taxable income. Valuation allowances are established, when
necessary, to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount expected to be realized. The provision for income taxes represents the tax expense for the period, if any,
and the change during the period in deferred tax assets and liabilities. At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the company has established a full allowance against
all deferred tax assets.

ASC 740 also provides criteria for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of uncertain tax positions. A tax benefit from an
uncertain position is recognized only if it is “more likely than not” that the position is sustainable upon examination by the relevant taxing authority based on
its technical merit.

Internal Use Software

We incur software development costs to develop software programs to be used solely to meet our internal needs and cloud-based applications used to
deliver our services. In accordance with ASC 350-40, Internal-Use Software, we capitalize development costs related to these software applications once the
preliminary project stage is complete and it is probable that the project will be completed and the software will be used to perform the function intended.

Insurance Reserve

The Company records a loss reserve for insurance deductible or damage that the Company pays to car owners based on the Company’s policy in
relation to the insurance policy in effect at the time. This addition of the reserve is based on changes to the Company’s insurance policy that occurred during
the second quarter of 2018 in relation to the insurance policy in effect for car owners. This reserve represents an estimate for both reported accidents claims
not yet paid, and claims incurred but not yet reported and are recorded on a non-discounted basis. The lag time in reported claims is minimal and as such
represents a low risk of unreported claims being excluded from the loss reserve assessment. The adequacy of the reserve is monitored quarterly and is subject
to adjustment in the future based upon changes in claims experience, including the number of incidents for which the Company is ultimately responsible and
changes in the cost per claim, or changes to the Company’s policy as to what amounts of the deductible or claim will be paid by the Company.

Liability insurance claims may take several years to completely settle, and the Company has limited historical loss experience. Because of the
limited operational history, the Company makes certain assumptions based on currently available information to estimate the reserves as well as third party
claims adjuster data provided on existing claims. A number of factors can affect the actual cost of a claim, including the length of time the claim remains
open, economic and healthcare cost trends and the results of related litigation. Furthermore, claims may emerge in future periods for events that occurred in a
prior period that differs from expectations. Accordingly, actual losses may vary significantly from the estimated amounts reported in the financial statements.
Reserves are continually reviewed and adjusted as necessary as experience develops or new information becomes known. However, ultimate results may
differ from the Company’s estimates, which could result in losses over the Company’s reserved amounts. Such adjustments are recorded in general and
administrative expenses.
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Convertible Debt and Warrant

Convertible debt is accounted for under the guidelines established by ASC 470-20, Debt with Conversion and Other Options. ASC 470-20 governs
the calculation of an embedded beneficial conversion and/or debt issued with warrants, which is treated as a discount to the instruments where derivative
accounting does not apply. The discounts are accreted over the term of the debt.

The Company calculates the fair value of warrants and conversion features issued with convertible instruments using the Black-Scholes valuation
method, using the same assumptions used for valuing employee options for purposes of ASC 718, Compensation — Stock Compensation, except the
contractual life of the warrant or conversion feature is used. Under these guidelines, the Company allocates the value of the proceeds received from a
convertible debt transaction between the conversion feature and any other detachable instruments (such as warrants) on a relative fair value basis. The
allocated fair value is recorded as a debt discount or premium and is amortized over the expected term of the convertible debt to interest expense.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We did not have during the periods presented, nor do we currently have, any off-balance sheet arrangements as defined under applicable SEC rules.
Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

As a smaller reporting company, as such term is defined in 17 C.F.R. 229.10, we are not required to provide disclosure for this item.

JOBS Act

On April 5, 2012, the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012, or the JOBS Act, was enacted. Section 107 of the JOBS Act provides that an
“emerging growth company” can take advantage of the extended transition period provided in Section 7(a)(2)(B) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,
or the Securities Act, for complying with new or revised accounting standards. In other words, an “emerging growth company” can delay the adoption of

certain accounting standards until those standards would otherwise apply to private companies.

We have chosen to use the extended transition periods available to emerging growth companies under the JOBS Act for complying with new or
revised accounting standards.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The financial statements required to be filed pursuant to this Item 8 are appended to this Annual Report. An index of those financial statements is
found in Item 15.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer (our principal executive officer and principal
financial officer, respectively), evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2018. The term “disclosure controls
and procedures,” as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act, means controls
and other procedures of a company that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by a company in the reports that it files or submits
under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms. Disclosure controls
and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by a company in the reports
that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to the company’s management, including its principal executive and
principal financial officers, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. Management recognizes that any controls and procedures,
no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving their objectives and management necessarily applies its

judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures.

Based on the evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2018, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
concluded that, as of such date, our disclosure controls and procedures are effective.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting

This Annual Report on Form 10-K does not include a report of management’s assessment regarding internal control over financial reporting or an
attestation report of our independent registered public accounting firm due to a transition period established by rules of the SEC for newly public companies.

In addition, because we are an “emerging growth company” under the JOBS Act, our independent registered public accounting firm will not be
required to attest to the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting for so long as we are an emerging growth company.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

No change in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) occurred during the
three months ended December 31, 2018 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information

Not applicable.
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PART III

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the information that will be contained in our definitive proxy statement
related to the 2019 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, or the Proxy Statement, which we intend to file with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission
within 120 days of the end of our fiscal year pursuant to General Instruction G(3) of Form 10-K.
Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the information that will be contained in our Proxy Statements, which
we intend to file with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days of the end of our fiscal year pursuant to General Instruction G(3) of
Form 10-K.
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the information that will be contained in our Proxy Statement, which we
intend to file with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days of the end of our fiscal year pursuant to General Instruction G(3) of
Form 10-K.
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the information that will be contained in our Proxy Statement, which we
intend to file with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days of the end of our fiscal year pursuant to General Instruction G(3) of
Form 10-K.
Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the information that will be contained in our Proxy Statement which we

intend to file with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days of the end of our fiscal year pursuant to General Instruction G(3) of
Form 10-K.
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PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules
(a) The following documents are filed as part of this report:

(1) Financial Statements:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm F-1
Balance Sheets F-2
Statements of Operations F-3
Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit), F-4
Statements of Cash Flows F-5
Notes to Financial Statements F-6

(2) Financial Statement Schedules:

All financial statement schedules have been omitted because they are not applicable, not required or the information required is shown in the financial
statements or the notes thereto.

(3) Exhibits.

Exhibit No. Description
3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation (incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A (File
No. 333-225157)
3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws (incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A (File No. 333-225157),
4.2 Specimen Stock Certificate evidencing the shares of common stock (incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on
Form S-1/A (File No. 333-225157),
10.1+ Employment Agreement between the Company and Joseph Furnari (incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on
Form S-1/A (File No. 333-225157),
10.2+ Employment Agreement between the Company and Michael Furnari (incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on
Form S-1/A (File No. 333-225157),
10.3+ Oral Employment Arrangement between the Company and Abhishek Arora (incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1/A (File No. 333-225157)
10.4+ Employment Agreement between the Company and Scott Brogi (incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K,
dated October 2, 2018),
10.5+ Employment Agreement between the Company and Henry Park (incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K,
dated October 30, 2018),
10.6 2016 Equity Incentive Plan and forms of award agreements thereunder (incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Registration Statement
on Form S-1/A (File No. 333-225157)
10.7 2018 Equity Incentive Plan and forms of award agreements thereunder (incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Registration Statement
on Form S-8 (File No. 333-229222)
23.1 Consent of dbbmckennon, independent registered public accounting firm
31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a)_and 15d-14(a)_under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a)_and 15d-14(a)_under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as Adopted
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
32.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002
32.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002

101.INS XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101.CAL  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
101.DEF  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document
101.LAB  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

+ Indicates a management contract or any compensatory plan, contract or arrangement
Item 16. Form 10-K Summary

Not applicable
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http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1713832/000121390018006777/fs12018ex3-5_hyrecarinc.htm
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Shareholders and the Board of Directors of HyreCar, Inc.
Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of HyreCar, Inc. (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the related statements of operations,
stockholders’ equity (deficit), and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the “financial statements”). In our
opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the
results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s financial
statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
(“PCAOB”) and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor
were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. As part of our audits we are required to obtain an understanding of
internal control over financial reporting but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.

Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and
performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

/s/ dbbmckennon

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2016.
Newport Beach, California
March 28, 2019




HYRECAR, INC.
BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

December 31,

2018 2017
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,764,870 $ 213,944
Accounts receivable 161,177 41,000
Deferred offering costs - 135,608
Deferred expenses 20,927 35,153
Other current assets 128,337 118,020
Total current assets 7,075,311 543,725
Property and equipment, net 10,613 -
Intangible assets, net 221,623 -
Other assets 90,000 90,000
Total assets $ 7,397,547 $ 633,725
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit)
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 856,925 $ 1,355,064
Accrued liabilities 775,857 119,226
Insurance reserve 348,442 -
Deferred revenue 53,764 47,718
Related party advances 9,629 9,629
Note payable, net of discount - 46,368
Notes payable - related party, net of discount - 278,607
Settlement payable - 24,444
Total current liabilities 2,044,617 1,881,056
Total liabilities 2,044,617 1,881,056
Commitments and contingencies (Note 3) - -
Stockholders’ equity (deficit):
Preferred stock, 15,000,000 shares authorized, par value $0.00001, 0 and 2,429,638 issued and outstanding as of
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively - 1,591,886
Common stock, 50,000,000 shares authorized, par value $0.00001, 11,708,041 and 5,252,953 issued and outstanding as
of December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively 117 52
Additional paid-in capital 21,857,017 2,553,672
Subscription receivable - related party (7,447) (140,087)
Accumulated deficit (16,496,757) (5,252,854)
Total stockholders’ equity (deficit) 5,352,930 (1,247,331)
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity (deficit) $ 7,397,547 $ 633,725

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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HYRECAR, INC.

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 31,
2018 2017

Revenues 9,777,079 3,223,874
Cost of revenues 5,132,079 2,912,548

Gross profit 4,645,000 311,326
Operating Expenses:

General and administrative 7,600,735 1,819,588

Sales and marketing 4,788,201 1,871,649

Research and development 1,414,727 687,039

Total operating expenses 13,803,663 4,378,276

Operating loss (9,158,663) (4,066,950)
Other expense:

Interest expense 2,040,311 202,454

Other expense 44,129 1,528
Total other (income) expense 2,084,440 203,982
Loss before provision for income taxes (11,243,103) (4,270,932)
Provision for income taxes 800 800

Net loss $ (11,243,903) $ (4,271,732)
Weighted average shares outstanding - basic and diluted 8,557,796 4,590,478
Weighted average net loss per share - basic and diluted $ (131 $ (0.93)

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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December 31, 2016
Preferred stock issued for services
Stock option compensation
Shares issued for payables
Discount on warrants issued with
convertible debt
Conversion of convertible debt
Series Seed Preferred Stock issued
for cash
Common stock issued for cash
Offering costs
Contingent beneficial conversion
feature triggered upon conversion
Interest on subscription receivable
Net loss

December 31, 2017

Conversion of Preferred Stock
Stock option compensation

Stock compensation on forfeitable
restricted common stock
Conversion of convertible debt
Discount for warrants issued with
convertible debt

Discount for beneficial conversion
feature on convertible debt
Common stock issued for cash
Offering costs associated with
underwriters in public offering
Offering costs

Warrants issued for services
Warrants issued to placement agent
Subscription receivable relieved
Interest on subscription receivable
Net loss

December 31, 2018

HYRECAR, INC.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)

Subscription Total
Additional Receivable - Accumulated Stockholders’
Preferred Stock Common Stock Paid-in Related Equity Equity
Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Parties (Deficit) (Deficit)
985,369 $ 700,000 3,978,610 $ 39 142,961  $ (138,700) $ (981,122) $ (276,822)
78,059 55,452 - - - - - 55,452
- - - - 281,229 - - 281,229
- - 37,755 1 66,069 - - 66,070
- - - - 84,031 - - 84,031
943,908 536,434 - - - - - 536,434
422,302 300,000 - - - - - 300,000
- - 1,236,588 12 2,164,017 - - 2,164,029
= = > > (320,130) > = (320,130)
- - - - 134,108 - - 134,108
- - - - 1,387 (1,387) - -
) ) . - - . (4,271,732) (4,271,732)
2,429,638 $ 1,591,886 5,252,953 $ 52 2,553,672 $ (140,087) $ (5,252,854) $ (1,247,331)
(2,429,638) (1,591,886) 2,429,638 25 1,591,861 - - -
= = = = 446,417 = = 446,417
- - 274,285 3 1,371,422 - - 1,371,425
- - 1,231,165 12 3,136,996 - - 3,137,008
- - - - 1,107,982 - - 1,107,982
- - - - 368,757 - - 368,757
- - 2,520,000 25 12,599,975 - - 12,600,000
- - - - (1,260,000) - - (1,260,000)
- - - - (569,665) - - (569,665)
- - - - 463,000 - - 463,000
- - - - 46,600 - - 46,600
- - - - - 133,042 - 133,042
- - - - - (402) - (402)
- - - - - - (11,243,903) (11,243,903)
- $ - 11,708,041 $ 117 21,857,017 $ !7,447) $ 16,496,757) $ 5,352,930

See accompanying notes to financial statements




HYRECAR, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:

Depreciation
Forgiveness of related party advance
Amortization of debt discount
Interest expense on beneficial conversion feature
Stock-based compensation
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Deferred expense
Other current assets
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Insurance reserve
Deferred revenues
Settlement paid
Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property and equipment and intangibles
Related party advance
Deposits and other

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from shares issued for cash
Offering costs associated with underwriters in public offering
Proceeds from note payable
Proceeds from notes payable - related parties
Proceeds from convertible debt
Repayment of Note Payable
Repayment of note payable - related parties
Offering costs
Receipt of subscription receivable
Proceeds from sale of preferred stock
Proceeds from sale of common stock

Net cash provided by financing activities

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest

Cash paid for income taxes

Non cash investing and financing activities:
Interest on subscription receivable

Discount on convertible notes with warrants
Preferred stock converted to common stock
Conversion of convertible notes and interest
Discount from beneficial conversion feature
Discount on notes payable with warrants

Debt and accrued interest converted to preferred stock

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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Year ended
December 31,
2018

Year ended
December 31,
2017

$  (11,243,903)

$ (4,271,732)

900 -
- 7,500
1,515,191 59,006
368,757 134,108
2,280,842 336,681
(120,177) (41,000)
14,226 (20,539)
(45,777) -
(362,530) 1,330,148
747,358 (5,651)
348,442 -
6,046 27,282
(24,444) (73,334)
(6,515,069) (2,517,530)
(233,136) -
- (500)
35,460 (142,479)
(197,676) (142,979)
12,600,000 -
(1,260,000) -
- 50,000
- 300,000
2,778,579 -
(50,000)
(300,000)
(637,547) (455,738)
132,640 -
- 300,000
- 2,164,029
13,263,672 2,358,291
6,550,926 (302,218)
213,944 516,162
$ 6764870 $ 213,944
$ 64,414 $ 3,383
800 800
$ 402 $ 694
$ 1,107,982 $ g
$ 1,591,886 $ -
$  3,13699% $ -
$ 368,757 $ -
$ . 85 84031
$ - $ 536,434




HYRECAR, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF OPERATIONS

HyreCar Inc. (which may be referred to as “HyreCar,” the “Company,” “we,” “us” or “our”) was incorporated on November 24, 2014 (“Inception”) in the
State of Delaware. The Company’s headquarters is located in Los Angeles, California. The Company operates a web-based marketplace that allows car and
fleet owners to rent their idle cars to Uber and Lyft drivers safely, securely and reliably. The financial statements of HyreCar Inc. are prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”).

Initial Public Offering

On June 29, 2018, the Company closed its initial public offering (“IPO”), in which the Company issued and sold 2,520,000 shares of common stock
at $5.00 per share for gross proceeds of $12,600,000, net of underwriters’ discounts and commissions totaling $1,260,000. Accordingly, net proceeds from the
IPO totaled $11,340,000, before deducting offering costs of $569,665.

In connection with the closing of the Company’s IPO, all outstanding shares of convertible preferred stock were converted into 2,429,638 shares of common
stock.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Management’s Plans

We have incurred operating losses since Inception and historically relied on debt and equity financing for working capital. Throughout the next 12 months,
the Company intends to fund its operations through increased revenue from operations and the remaining capital raised through the IPO. Based on increasing
revenue and margin in the normal course of business, our current capital and the ability to reduce expense levels if needed, we believe the doubt regarding the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern has been alleviated.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could materially differ
from these estimates. It is reasonably possible that changes in estimates will occur in the near term.

The Company’s most significant estimates and judgments involve recognition of revenue, calculating insurance reserves, the measurement of the Company’s
stock-based compensation, including the estimation of the underlying deemed fair value of common stock in periods prior to the date of the Company’s IPO,
the estimation of the fair value of market-based awards, the valuation of warrants, allowance for doubtful accounts, estimates for future contingent customer
incentive obligations, and the fair value of financial instruments.
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value is defined as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most
advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants as of the measurement date. Applicable accounting
guidance provides an established hierarchy for inputs used in measuring fair value that maximizes the use of observable inputs and minimizes the use of
unobservable inputs by requiring that the most observable inputs be used when available. Observable inputs are inputs that market participants would use in
valuing the asset or liability and are developed based on market data obtained from sources independent of the Company. Unobservable inputs are inputs that
reflect the Company’s assumptions about the factors that market participants would use in valuing the asset or liability. There are three levels of inputs that
may be used to measure fair value:

Level 1 - Observable inputs that reflect quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets.
Level 2 - Include other inputs that are directly or indirectly observable in the marketplace.
Level 3 - Unobservable inputs which are supported by little or no market activity.

The fair value hierarchy also requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair
value.

Fair-value estimates discussed herein are based upon certain market assumptions and pertinent information available to management as of December 31, 2018
and 2017. The respective carrying value of certain on-balance-sheet financial instruments approximated their fair values. These financial instruments include
cash and cash equivalents, accounts payable, accrued liabilities, notes payable, convertible debt and settlement payable. Fair values for these items were
assumed to approximate carrying values because of their short-term nature or they are payable on demand.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purpose of the statement of cash flows, the Company considers institutional money market funds and all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with an
original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are reported net of allowance for expected losses. It represents the amount management expects to collect from outstanding balances.
Differences between the amount due and the amount management expects to collect are charged to operations in the year in which those differences are
determined, with an offsetting entry to a valuation allowance. As of December 31, 2018, and 2017, the Company has no reserve allowance. As of December
31, 2018, and 2017, one customer made up of 100% of the balance in accounts receivable. The Company does not believe the loss of this customer would
have a material impact on the Company’s financial position, results of operations, or cash flows.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. The Company’s fixed assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life. Leasehold
improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the useful life or lease life. Maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred. Significant
renewals and betterments are capitalized. At the time of retirement or other disposition of property and equipment, the cost and accumulated depreciation are
removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is reflected in operations. Property and equipment at December 31, 2018 was made up of equipment
and software. Depreciation expense and accumulated depreciation for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 was $900 and $0, respectively.

Offering Costs

The Company accounts for offering costs in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 340, Other Assets and Deferred Costs. Prior to the
completion of an offering, offering costs were capitalized as deferred offering costs on the balance sheet. The deferred offering costs are netted against the
proceeds of the offering in stockholders’ equity (deficit) or the related debt, as applicable.

Internal Use Software

We incur software development costs to develop software programs to be used solely to meet our internal needs and cloud-based applications used to deliver
our services. In accordance with Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 350-40, Internal-Use Software, we capitalize development costs related to these
software applications once a preliminary project stage is complete, funding has been committed, and it is probable that the project will be completed, and the
software will be used to perform the function intended. As of December 31, 2018, the Company has capitalized $221,623 of internal software related costs,
which is included in intangible assets in the accompanying balance sheets. There were no such costs capitalized in 2017.
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Impairment of Long-Lived assets

The long-lived assets held and used by the Company are reviewed for impairment no less frequently than annually or whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. In the event facts and circumstances indicate that the cost of any long-
lived assets may be impaired, an evaluation of recoverability is performed. There were no impairment losses during the years ended December 31, 2018 and
2017. There can be no assurance, however, that market conditions will not change or demand for the Company’s products and services will continue, which
could result in impairment of long-lived assets in the future.

Deferred Rent

The Company recognizes rental expense on a straight-line basis from the time of the lease commencement date through the end of the lease. As of December
31, 2018, the Company recognized deferred rent resulting from future escalating lease payments and abated rent totaling $73,886, which is included in
accrued liabilities in the accompanying balance sheets.

Insurance Reserve

The Company records a loss reserve for insurance deductible or damage that the Company pays to car owners based on the Company’s policy in relation to
the insurance policy in effect at the time. This addition of the reserve is based on changes to the Company’s insurance policy that occurred during the second
quarter of 2018 in relation to the insurance policy in effect for car owners. This reserve represents an estimate for both reported accidents claims not yet paid,
and claims incurred but not yet reported and are recorded on a non-discounted basis. The lag time in reported claims is minimal and as such represents a low
risk of unreported claims being excluded from the loss reserve assessment. The adequacy of the reserve is monitored quarterly and is subject to adjustment in
the future based upon changes in claims experience, including the number of incidents for which the Company is ultimately responsible and changes in the
cost per claim, or changes to the Company’s policy as to what amounts of the deductible or claim will be paid by the Company. As of December 31, 2018,
$348,442 was included in the accompanying balance sheets related to the loss reserve, where the expense is reflected in the general and administrative within
the statements of operations. No such liability was recorded as of December 31, 2017 as the Company’s policy was such that it was not responsible for any
claims at the time.

Liability insurance claims may take several years to completely settle, and the Company has limited historical loss experience. Because of the limited
operational history, the Company makes certain assumptions based on currently available information to estimate the reserves as well as third party claims
adjuster data provided on existing claims. A number of factors can affect the actual cost of a claim, including the length of time the claim remains open,
economic and healthcare cost trends and the results of related litigation. Furthermore, claims may emerge in future periods for events that occurred in a prior
period that differs from expectations. Accordingly, actual losses may vary significantly from the estimated amounts reported in the financial statements.
Reserves are continually reviewed and adjusted as necessary as experience develops or new information becomes known. However, ultimate results may
differ from the Company’s estimates, which could result in losses over the Company’s reserved amounts. Such adjustments are recorded in general and
administrative expenses.

Convertible Debt and Warrant

Convertible debt is accounted for under the guidelines established by ASC 470-20, Debt with Conversion and Other Options. ASC 470-20 governs the
calculation of an embedded beneficial conversion and/or debt issued with warrants, which is treated as a discount to the instruments where derivative
accounting does not apply. The discounts are accreted over the term of the debt.

The Company calculates the fair value of warrants and conversion features issued with convertible instruments using the Black-Scholes valuation method,
using the same assumptions used for valuing employee options for purposes of ASC 718, Compensation — Stock Compensation, except the contractual life of
the warrant or conversion feature is used. Under these guidelines, the Company allocates the value of the proceeds received from a convertible debt
transaction between the conversion feature and any other detachable instruments (such as warrants) on a relative fair value basis. The allocated fair value is
recorded as a debt discount or premium and is amortized over the expected term of the convertible debt to interest expense.
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Preferred Stock

ASC 480, Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity, includes standards for how an issuer of equity classifies and measures on its balance sheet certain financial
instruments with characteristics of both liabilities and equity.

Management is required to determine the presentation for the preferred stock because of the redemption and conversion provisions, among other provisions.
Specifically, management is required to determine whether the embedded conversion feature in the preferred stock is clearly and closely related to the host
instrument, and whether the bifurcation of the conversion feature is required and whether the conversion feature should be accounted for as a derivative
instrument. If the host instrument and conversion feature are determined to be clearly and closely related (both more akin to equity), derivative liability
accounting under ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging, is not required. Management determined the host contract of the preferred stock is more akin to equity,
and accordingly, derivative liability accounting is not required by the Company. The Company has presented preferred stock within stockholders’ equity
(deficit) section of the balance sheet.

Costs incurred directly for the issuance of the preferred stock were recorded as a reduction of gross proceeds received by the Company, resulting in a discount
to the preferred stock.

In connection with the closing of the Company’s IPO, all outstanding shares of convertible preferred stock were converted into 2,429,638 shares of common
stock.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue primarily from insurance and transaction fees when a car is rented on the Company’s platform when (a) persuasive
evidence an agreement exists which occurs when the rental contract is signed electronically between the two parties involved; (b) the services have been
delivered; (c) the prices are fixed and determinable and not subject to refund or adjustment; and (d) collection of the amounts due is reasonably assured which
occurs simultaneously when the booking is accepted and the credit card or account on file is charged. The Company defers revenue where the earnings
process is not yet complete.

The Company also recognizes revenue from other sources such as referrals, motor vehicle record fees (application fees), late rental fees, and other fees
charged to drivers in specific situations.

In limited circumstances, the Company provides contingent consideration in the form of a rebate or refund that is redeemable only if the customer completes a
specific level of transaction over a specific time period. In such cases, the rebate or refund obligation is recognized as a reduction of revenues. Measurement

of the total rebate or refund obligation is based on management estimates using historical data and included in accrued liabilities.

Insurance and transaction fees are charged to a driver in a single transaction. Drivers currently do not have an option to decline insurance at any point during
the transaction.

The following is a breakout of revenue components by subcategory for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017.

2018 2017
Insurance and administration fees $ 5,090,441 $ 1,650,512
Transaction fees 3,479,004 1,465,426
Other fees 1,557,084 212,077
Incentives and rebates (349,450) (104,141)
Net revenue $ 9,777,079 $ 3,223,874
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Principal Agent Considerations
The Company evaluates our service offerings to determine if we are acting as the principal or as an agent, which we consider in determining if revenue should
be reported gross or net. One of our primary revenue source is a transaction fee made from a confirmed booking of a vehicle on our platform. Key indicators
that we evaluate to reach this determination include:

e the terms and conditions of our contracts;

® whether we are paid a fixed percentage of the arrangement’s consideration or a fixed fee for each transaction;

e the party which sets the pricing with the end-user, has the credit risk and provides customer support; and

e the party responsible for delivery/fulfillment of the product or service to the end consumer.

We have determined we act as the agent in the transaction for vehicle bookings, as we are not the primary obligor of the arrangement and receive a fixed
percentage of the transaction. Therefore, revenue is recognized on a net basis.

For other fees such as insurance, referrals, and motor vehicle records (application fees) we have determined revenue should be recorded on a gross basis. In
such arrangements, the Company sets pricing, has risk of economic loss, has certain credit risk, provides support services related to these transactions, and has
decision making ability about service providers used.

Cost of Revenues

Cost of revenues primarily include direct fees paid for driver insurance, merchant processing fees, and motor vehicle record fees incurred for paid driver
applications.

Advertising

The Company expenses the cost of advertising and promotions as incurred. Advertising expense was $2,086,826 and $433,506 for the years ended December
31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Research and Development

We incur research and development costs during the process of researching and developing our technologies and future offerings. Our research and
development costs consist primarily of non-capitalized development and maintenance costs. We expense these costs as incurred unless such costs qualify for
capitalization under applicable guidance.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock options issued to employees under ASC 718, Compensation — Stock Compensation. Under ASC 718, stock-based
compensation cost to employees is measured at the grant date, based on the estimated fair value of the award, and is recognized as expense over the
employee’s requisite vesting period. The fair value of each stock option or warrant award is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option
valuation model.

The Company measures compensation expense for its non-employee stock-based compensation under ASC 505, Equity. The fair value of the option issued or
committed to be issued is used to measure the transaction, as this is more reliable than the fair value of the services received. The fair value is measured at the
value of the Company’s common stock or equity award on the date that the commitment for performance by the counterparty has been reached or the
counterparty’s performance is complete.

Stock-based compensation is included in operating expenses in the statements of operations as follows:

Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 31,
2018 2017
General and administrative $ 2,083,269 $ 155,723
Sales and marketing 149,586 138,406
Research and development $ 47,987 $ 42,522
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Income Taxes

The Company applies ASC 740, Income Taxes (“ASC 740”). Deferred income taxes are recognized for the tax consequences in future years of differences
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their financial statement reported amounts at each period end, based on enacted tax laws and statutory tax
rates applicable to the periods in which the differences are expected to affect taxable income. Valuation allowances are established, when necessary, to reduce
deferred tax assets to the amount expected to be realized. The provision for income taxes represents the tax expense for the period, if any, and the change
during the period in deferred tax assets and liabilities. At December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company has established a full allowance against all deferred tax
assets.

ASC 740 also provides criteria for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of uncertain tax positions. A tax benefit from an uncertain
position is recognized only if it is “more likely than not” that the position is sustainable upon examination by the relevant taxing authority based on its
technical merit.

Loss per Common Share

The Company presents basic loss per share (“EPS”) and diluted EPS on the face of the statements of operations. Basic loss per share is computed as net loss
divided by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the period. For periods in which we incur a net loss, the effects of potentially
dilutive securities would be antidilutive and would be excluded from diluted EPS calculations. For the year ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, there were
2,726,464 and 1,334,830 options or warrants excluded, respectively. As of December 31, 2018, and 2017, there were no debts convertible into common stock.
As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, there were 0 and 2,429,638 shares of preferred stock convertible into common stock outstanding.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company maintains its cash with a major financial institution located in the United States of America which it believes to be credit worthy. Balances are
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000. At times, the Company maintains balances in excess of the federally insured limits.

Other Concentrations

The Company relies on one insurance agency to provide all insurance on vehicles in service. The loss of this insurance carrier would have a negative effect on
our operations.

New Accounting Standards

In June 2018, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) No. 2018-07, Compensation - Stock
Compensation (Topic 718): Improvements to Nonemployee Share-Based Payment Accounting (“ASU 2018-07”). ASU 2018-07 eliminates the separate
accounting model for nonemployee share-based payment awards and generally requires companies to account for share-based payment transactions with
nonemployees in the same way as share-based payment transactions with employees. The accounting remains different for attribution, which represents how
the equity-based payment cost is recognized over the vesting period, and a contractual term election for valuing nonemployee equity share options. ASU
2018-07 is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2018 with early adoption permitted. The Company
is in process of assessing the impact of the adoption of ASU 2018-07 on the financial statements.

In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-04, Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): Simplifying the Test for Goodwill Impairment, which simplifies the
subsequent measurement of goodwill by eliminating Step 2 from the goodwill impairment test. The amendments also eliminate the requirements for any
reporting unit with a zero or negative carrying amount to perform a qualitative assessment and, if it fails that qualitative test, to perform Step 2 of the goodwill
impairment test. An entity still has the option to perform the qualitative assessment for a reporting unit to determine if the quantitative impairment test is
necessary. This guidance is effective for the annual or any interim goodwill impairment tests in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019. Early
adoption is permitted for interim or annual goodwill impairment tests performed on testing dates after January 1, 2017. The Company is currently reviewing
the provisions of the new standard, but it is not expected to have a significant impact on the Company.
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In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), specifying the accounting for leases, which supersedes the leases requirements in
Topic 840, Leases. The objective of Topic 842 is to establish the principles that lessees and lessors shall apply to report useful information to users of
financial statements about the amount, timing, and uncertainty of cash flows arising from a lease. Lessees are permitted to make an accounting policy election
to not recognize the asset and liability for leases with a term of twelve months or less. Lessors’ accounting is largely unchanged from the previous accounting
standard. In addition, Topic 842 expands the disclosure requirements of lease arrangements. Lessees and lessors will use a modified retrospective transition
approach, which includes several practical expedients. This guidance is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after
December 15, 2018, with early adoption permitted. The Company has reviewed the provisions of the new standard, but it is not expected to have a significant
impact on the Company.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) and has issued subsequent
amendments to this guidance. This new standard will replace all current guidance on this topic and eliminate all industry-specific
guidance. The new revenue recognition standard provides a unified model to determine when and how revenue is recognized. The
core principle is that a company should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration for which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The
guidance is effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2017 for public business entities and December
31, 2018 for all other entities. The standard may be applied either retrospectively to each period presented or as a cumulative-effect
adjustment as of the date of adoption. The Company has elected the extended transition period for complying with any new or
revised financial accounting standards afforded to emerging growth companies. As the Company has reviewed the provisions of the
new standard, Management does not foresee a material impact to the financial statements as a whole.

The FASB issues ASUs to amend the authoritative literature in ASC. There have been several ASUs to date, including those above, that amend the original
text of ASC. Management believes that those issued to date either (i) provide supplemental guidance, (ii) are technical corrections, (iii) are not applicable to
us or (iv) are not expected to have a significant impact our financial statements.

NOTE 3 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Settlement and Legal

In September 2015, two former founders (the “Claimant Founders”) made an arbitration claim against the Company for alleged violations of an agreement
among the founders of the Company (the “Founders’ Agreement”). The Claimant Founders and the Company arbitrated the dispute but, prior to the arbitrator
rendering a decision, the Company and the Claimant Founders settled the dispute without any party admitting liability or fault. Under the terms of the April
25, 2016 settlement (the “Settlement Agreement”), each of the Claimant Founders would maintain 190,177 shares of their common stock restricted per the
Founders’ Agreement and with certain additional restrictions. Additionally, the Claimant Founders agreed to remit the remaining balance of stock previously
held by them back to the Company. The Settlement Agreement provided that the Claimant Founders’ stock ownership would be diluted upon subsequent
money raises, stock option offerings, and stock option vesting, however, any dilution would remain consistent and proportional to the remaining founders’
dilution ratios. The claimants also received a total of $110,000 paid out over eighteen (18) months starting on November 1, 2016. The remaining balance of
$24,444 owed as of December 31, 2017 to the Claimant Founders under the Settlement Agreement was paid in 2018 and no additional monies are now due
under the Settlement Agreement.

Thereafter, on November 13, 2018, the same two Claimant Founders, initiated two lawsuits in the Superior Court of California, County of San Francisco,
entitled Nathaniel Farber v. HyreCar Inc., Case No. CGC-18-571257 and Josiah Larkin v. HyreCar Inc., Case No. CGC-18-571258. The complaints for the
lawsuits, which were largely duplicative, allege that the Company breached the Settlement Agreement by not allowing the Claimant Founders to sell stock in
the initial public offering (“IPO”) of the Company, failing to offer to buyback Claimant Founders’ stock at the time of the IPO, allowing the issuance of
certain stock without proportionately increasing the stock ownership of Claimant Founders, and not providing certain required information to the Claimant
Founders. The Company very strongly disagrees with all of the allegations and intends to vigorously contest both lawsuits. The Company believes that, at
all times, its actions have been consistent with the terms, conditions, and context of the Settlement Agreement, as well as applicable law. At this time, the
lawsuits are in their early stages and the Company is unable to estimate potential damage exposures, if there are any, related to the lawsuits.

In July 2017, an owner of several vehicles that he was renting through the Company’s platform filed for arbitration seeking damages for losses associated
with renting his vehicles, specifically losses associated with a claimed stolen vehicle, storage fees, damage/repair fees, an insurance deductible, and purported
loss of income due to his inability to rent the stolen/damaged vehicles. In December 2017, the owner also filed a lawsuit in the Superior Court of California,
County of Los Angeles, reasserting the same claims. The Company believes this action is without merit and is vigorously defending itself, while also
exploring whether the dispute can be settled in an expeditious manner. The Company moved to compel the owner to arbitrate his claims and to stay his
Superior Court case. That motion was heard on June 19, 2018 and the court granted the motion to compel arbitration. As of January 29, 2019, the arbitrator
issued a decision to award nothing to the owner. The arbitrator upheld the enforceability of the Company’s terms of service and made clear that they
precluded damages sought by the owner and dismissed the owner’s tort claims as unmeritorious.
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The Company is involved in claims and litigation from time to time in the normal course of business. At December 31, 2018, the Company believes there are
no pending matters, except as noted above, that are expected to have a material adverse effect on the business of the Company, its financial condition, results
of operations or cash flows.

Agreements

In November 2017, the Company entered into a 180-day agreement with a third-party broker/dealer to assist in raising funds under a private placement. For
their services, they were to receive five percent (5%) of the gross proceeds under the placement as a success fee defined by the agreement, non-callable
warrants equal to ten percent (10%) of the aggregate number of shares of common stock, or in the case of non-convertible securities, the aggregate number of
shares of common stock issuable as if the non-convertible securities were convertible into common stock at the public stock price on the date of closing if the
Company is public or valuation per share on the date of closing if the Company is private (excluding warrants) sold to potential investors in the placement.
The warrants were to entitle the holder to purchase securities of the Company at the same terms as issued under the placement, except that the exercise price
of the warrants would be 110% of the lesser of (a) the price at which securities (excluding the value of any warrants) are issued or (b) the exercise price of any
warrants issued to entities funding the placement. The agreement also called for $20,000 due upon execution of the agreement and non-accountable expense
cash fees equal to three percent (3%) of the gross proceeds due and payable immediately upon the closing of the placement. The compensation terms of this
agreement were modified on June 22, 2018 prior to the IPO such that 15,445 warrants were issued with a five-year term and exercise price of $2.80. The
Company valued the warrants similar to stock options in Note 5 which was recorded as a discount on the related debt, Accordingly, the Company recorded
$46,600 of interest expense related to the accretion of the discount upon conversion of the 2018 Convertible Notes. See Note 4 for 2018 Convertible Notes
related to this agreement.

Other

In November 2017, the Company entered into a lease in Los Angeles, California commencing April 1, 2018, with the ability to occupy the facility in January
2018. The lease term is 39 months from the commencement date. Annual base rent is as follows: 2019 - $342,480, 2020 - $356,145, 2021 - $183,489,
respectively. The lease required a deposit of $90,000. Per the lease agreement, the monthly rate will range from $27,708 to $31,167 a month. The Company
also rents office furniture and incurs ancillary fees for building services and shared expenses. Rent expense for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017
was $321,681 and $161,293, respectively.

NOTE 4 - DEBT AND LIABILITIES

Accrued Liabilities

A summary of accrued liabilities for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 is as follows:

2018 2017
Accrued payables $ 452,307 $ -
Driver deposits 192,769 54,226
Deferred rent 73,886 -
Payroll liabilities 3,154 41,000
Other accrued liabilities 53,741 24,000
Accrued liabilities $ 775,857 $ 119,226

2016 Convertible Notes Payable

From June 2016 to September 2016, the Company issued convertible promissory notes (the “2016 Convertible Notes™) to related parties and third parties with
the same terms and conditions totaling indebtedness of $500,000 $150,000 of which was borrowed from related parties. The 2016 Convertible Notes bore
interest at 12%, with a default rate of 15% and were due three years from the issuance date. The 2016 Convertible Notes were automatically convertible upon
1) the consummation of an investment in the Company’s equity securities of over $250,000 through a single or series of transactions involving the same party
or parties and 2) the occurrence of a liquidity event as defined by the 2016 Convertible Notes. The holders had the option to convert the entire unpaid and
outstanding principal amount and any accrued interest thereon under the 2016 Convertible Notes on the maturity date. The conversion price was the lesser of
1) that price per share that was eighty percent (80%) of the purchase price per share of the same class and series of equity securities sold by the Company in a
qualifying transaction or liquidity event or 2) an amount equal to $4,000,000 divided by the total number of outstanding shares of the Company’s common
stock immediately prior to the transaction or liquidity event on a fully-diluted, as-converted basis.
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In February 2017, the outstanding balance of the 2016 Convertible Notes was converted into Series Seed 1 Convertible Preferred Stock based on the
conversion terms noted above due to the closing of a qualifying investment in equity securities. Accordingly, the 2016 Convertible Notes and accrued interest
thereon totaling $36,434 was converted into 943,908 shares of Series Seed 1 Convertible Preferred Stock. Upon conversion, the contingent beneficial
conversion feature was no longer contingent, and resulted in a discount and immediate accretion of such discount in the amount of $134,108, which was
charged to interest expense in the accompanying statement of operations during the year ended December 31, 2017.

Interest expense for the 2016 Convertible Notes, including the charge for the beneficial conversion feature, for the year ended December 31, 2017 was
$140,065. There were no such charges in 2018 related to the 2016 Convertible Notes.

2017 Notes Payable

In April and May 2017, the Company issued promissory notes to related parties totaling $300,000 and a third party totaling $50,000 with the same terms and
conditions (collectively, the “2017 Notes”) and issued five-year warrants to purchase up to 200,000 shares of common stock with an exercise price of $2.10
per share. The Company calculated the relative fair value of the warrants using a Black-Scholes option pricing model with similar inputs as disclosed for
stock options in Note 5, resulting in a discount of $84,031. During the year ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company accreted $25,025 and $59,006
of this discount to interest expense, respectively. The outstanding balance of the 2017 Notes has been repaid as of December 31, 2018.

2018 Convertible Notes and Warrants

During the first and second quarter of 2018, pursuant to a securities purchase agreement, the Company issued and sold senior secured convertible promissory
notes (the “2018 Convertible Notes”) to accredited investors in the aggregate principal amount of $3,046,281. Gross principal amounts were net of $267,702
withheld for net proceeds of $2,778,579. The Company incurred additional offering costs of $67,882 for a total debt discount of $335,584, which was fully
amortized by the IPO date. The 2018 Convertible Notes bore interest at the rate of 13% per annum and were due eight months from the original issue date,
which ranged from September to December 2018 (the “Maturity Dates”). The 2018 Convertible Notes provided that the principal and all accrued and unpaid
interest on the 2018 Convertible Notes were convertible into shares of common stock at a conversion rate equal to the lesser of $2.5480 per share or seventy
percent (70%) of the IPO price per share. Upon pricing the IPO, at the option of the holders, all outstanding principal plus accrued interest underlying the
2018 Convertible Notes was converted into 1,231,165 shares of common stock at a conversion rate of $2.5480. Upon conversion, the contingent beneficial
conversion feature was no longer contingent, and resulted in a discount and immediate accretion of such discount in the amount of $368,757 which was
charged to interest expense in the accompanying statement of operations during the year ended December 31, 2018.

In connection with the issuance of the 2018 Convertible Notes, each holder also received contingent five-year warrants to purchase common stock in an
amount equal to 50% of the shares of common stock that the holder was entitled to in connection with the conversion of the holder’s 2018 Convertible Note
when such note first became convertible, which was at the time the IPO was priced. Prior to the 2018 Convertible Note being convertible, the holder did not
have a right to exercise these warrants. At the IPO pricing date, 615,585 warrants to purchase common stock became exercisable upon the conversion of the
outstanding balance of the 2018 Convertible Notes, including accrued interest. The warrants have an exercise price of 125% of the conversion price, or
$3.185. The Company calculated the fair value of the warrants at $1,741,334 using a Black-Scholes pricing model. The Company valued the warrants at
$2.8288 per warrant using a common stock fair value of $5.00, a term of five years, a volatility of 45% and a risk-free interest rate of 2.75%. The Company
allocated the debt proceeds on a relative fair value basis between the note and warrant, in which the Company recognized a note discount for $1,107,982. This
was immediately recognized in interest expense as of the note conversion date. As of December 31, 2018, all of the warrants were outstanding.

F-14




NOTE 5 - STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT
Preferred Stock

The Company is authorized to issue 15,000,000 shares of preferred stock, $0.00001 par value per share. Of these, the Company designated 4,471,489 shares
as Series Seed 1 Convertible Preferred Stock (“Series Seed 1”). Each share of Series Seed 1 shall be entitled to cast the number of votes equal to the number
of whole shares of common stock into which the shares of Series Seed 1 held are convertible as of the record date. Series Seed 1 and common stock vote
together as a single class, except as provided by law or by other provisions of the certificate of incorporation.

Upon the occurrence of any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the corporation or deemed liquidation event (as defined by the
HyreCar, Inc. Certificate of Designation of Preferences, Rights and Limitations of Series Seed 1 Convertible Preferred Stock), the holders of shares of Series
Seed 1 then outstanding shall be entitled to be paid out of the assets of the Corporation available for distribution to its stockholders before any payment shall
be made to the holders of Common Stock by reason of their ownership thereof, an amount per share equal to the greater of (i) one (1) times the Series Seed 1
Original Issue Price, plus any dividends declared but unpaid thereon, or (ii) such amount per share as would have been payable had all shares of Series Seed 1
been converted into Common Stock immediately prior to such liquidation, dissolution, winding up or deemed liquidation event. If upon any such liquidation,
dissolution or winding up of the corporation or deemed liquidation event, the assets of the corporation available for distribution to its stockholders shall be
insufficient to pay the holders of shares of Series Seed 1 the full amount to which they shall be entitled, the holders of shares of Series Seed 1 shall share
ratably in any distribution of the assets available for distribution in proportion to the respective amounts which would otherwise be payable in respect of the
shares held by them upon such distribution if all amounts payable on or with respect to such shares were paid in full.

Each share of Series Seed 1 shall be convertible, at the option of the holder and at any time, into such number of shares of common stock as determined by
dividing the Series Seed 1 original issue price by $0.71, subject to customary adjustments for stock dividends, stock splits, or other recapitalization with
respect to the Series Seed 1.

As described in Note 1, on June 29, 2018, at the closing of the IPO, 2,429,638 shares of outstanding Series Seed 1 Convertible Preferred Stock automatically
converted into 2,429,638 shares of common stock.

Common Stock
The Company is authorized to issue 50,000,000 shares of common stock, $0.00001 par value per share.
Private Placement

Starting in June 2017, the Company undertook a private placement for the sale of common stock for $1.75 per share. During the year ended December 31,
2017, 1,236,588 shares of common stock were sold for gross proceeds of $2,164,029. Relating to this offering, the Company was required to pay the
placement agent for the private placement a cash commission equal to 13% of the gross proceeds and issue the placement agent, or its designees, warrant to
purchase shares of common stock equal to 10% the amount of monies raised divided by $1.75. Accordingly, as of December 31, 2017, $281,324 in cash
commissions have been paid or are payable along with $38,806 in related legal and other fees, both of which were netted against the gross proceeds of the
offering. Based on the amounts raised through December 31, 2017, the Company issued the placement agent warrants to purchase 123,659, exercisable at
$2.00 per share. The value of these placement agent warrants, for which similar inputs were used compared to stock options below, are both an increase and
reduction to additional paid-in capital for a net zero effect on the gross proceeds of the offering.
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On June 22, 2018, the placement agent warrants that were to be earned, were amended to (i) decrease the amount of shares that can be purchased at an
exercise price of $2.00 per share to 60,392 shares of common stock and (ii) reduce the remaining 63,267 shares to 28,993 shares at a modified exercise price
of $7.50 per share, due to the fact that such placement agent warrants were earned 180 days immediately preceding the filing date of the TPO registration
statement.

Collateralized Restricted Stock Purchases

In 2016, the Company issued 1,032,387 shares of restricted common stock to related parties that vest as follows: 33% upon a sale of securities for gross
proceeds of at least $250,000 in one or more transactions and the remaining 67% vest monthly over three years, becoming fully vested in April 2019. For
consideration of these shares, the related parties entered into note agreements totaling $138,700 that call for the principal and interest to be paid back in ten
years from the date of the loan. The notes bear interest at 1%. The loans are secured by the related shares of common stock. On May 31, 2018, the board of
directors determined that it was in the best interest of the Company, in order to comply with the requirements of Section 402 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002 prior to filing the TPO registration statement with the SEC, to (i) issue a bonus to those related parties serving as an officer and/or director of the
Company in the amount owed by each party. Each such related party bonus was used to repay and terminate the note agreements. An aggregate of $131,400
in principal was repaid and terminated along with accrued interest thereon. Remaining balance of $7,447 is outstanding to a related party that is not serving as
an officer or director of the Company. As of December 31, 2018, 955,532 shares have vested.

Stock Options

In 2016, the Board of Directors adopted the HyreCar, Inc. 2016 Incentive Plan (the “2016 Plan”). The 2016 Plan provides for the grant of equity awards to
highly qualified personnel, including stock options, restricted stock, stock appreciation rights, and restricted stock units to purchase shares of common stock.
Up to 2,227,777 shares of common stock may be issued pursuant to awards granted under the 2016 Plan. The 2016 Plan is administered by the Board of
Directors, and expires ten years after adoption, unless terminated earlier by the Board.

In 2018, the Board of Directors adopted the HyreCar, Inc. 2018 Incentive Plan (the “2018 Plan”). The 2018 Plan provides for the grant of equity awards to
purchase shares of common stock. Up to 3,000,000 shares of common stock may be issued pursuant to awards granted under the 2018 Plan, subject to
increases that occur starting in 2021. The 2018 Plan is administered by the Board of Directors, and expires ten years after adoption, unless terminated earlier
by the Board.

During the year ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, the board of directors approved the grant of 697,500 and 1,105,394 stock options to various contractors
and employees, respectively. The 2018 granted options had an exercise prices ranging from $2.21 - $5.00, expire in ten years, and had vesting periods from
two to four years. The 2017 granted options had an exercise prices ranging from $0.71 - $1.75, expire in five to ten years, and ranged from immediate vesting
to vesting over a four-year period, many of which had vesting commencement dates retroactively applied based on the individual’s service period. The total
grant date fair value of options granted to employees was approximately $1,120,995 and $286,966 for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively. Options granted to contractors are revalued each reporting period. Certain contractors were hired as employees in 2018 and, accordingly, such
grants will be treated as employee grants prospectively. The Company used the Black-Scholes option mode to value stock option awards with inputs noted
below.

A summary of our stock option activity for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, is as follows:

Weighted
Weighted average
average remaining
Number of exercise contractual life
shares price (years)
Outstanding at December 31, 2016 — —
Granted 1,105,394 $ 1.01 9.8
Exercised - - -
Forfeited or expired (84,223) 0.71 9.3
Outstanding at December 31, 2017 1,021,171  $ 1.04 9.3
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Weighted

Weighted average
average remaining

Number of exercise contractual life

shares price (years)
Outstanding at December 31, 2017 1,021,171  $ 1.04 9.3
Granted 697,500 3.73 -
Exercised = = =
Forfeited or expired (238,232) 3.59 -
Outstanding at December 31, 2018 1,480,439 $ 1.90 8.8
Exercisable at December 31, 2017 245,165 $ 0.82 9.1
Exercisable at December 31, 2018 549,877 $ 0.98 8.4

Stock-based compensation expense for stock options for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 was and $446,417 and $281,229 respectively.

As of December 31, 2018, the total estimated remaining stock-based compensation expense for unvested stock options is aproximately $1,093,000 which is
expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 2.1 years.

The Company estimates the fair value of stock options that contain service and/or performance conditions using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The
range of input assumptions used by the Company were as follows:

Year Ended
December 31, December 31,
2018 2017
Expected volatility 45% 40% — 45%
Risk-free interest rate 1.95-2.99% 1.82 - 2.56%
Expected life in years 5.39-6.25 5.5-625
Expected dividend yield 0% 0%

The Company recognizes stock option forfeitures as they occur as there is insufficient historical data to accurately determine future forfeitures rates.

The risk-free interest rate assumption for options granted is based upon observed interest rates on the United States government securities appropriate for the
expected term of the Company’s stock options.

The expected term of stock options is calculated using the simplified method which takes into consideration the contractual life and vesting terms of the
options.

The Company determined the expected volatility assumption for options granted using the historical volatility of comparable public company’s common
stock. The Company will continue to monitor peer companies and other relevant factors used to measure expected volatility for future stock option grants,

until such time that the Company’s common stock has enough market history to use historical volatility.

The dividend yield assumption for options granted is based on the Company’s history and expectation of dividend payouts. The Company has never declared
or paid any cash dividends on its common stock, and the Company does not anticipate paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable future.

Management estimated the fair value of common stock prior to the IPO date by looking at a market approach which takes into consideration past sales of our
common and preferred stock, as well Company developments to date.
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Restricted Shares

A summary of activity with our restricted shares for the year ended December 31, 2018, is as follows:

Weighted
average grant
Number of date fair value
shares per share
Unvested as of December 31, 2017 - -
Granted 1,099,285 $ 5.00
Vested (274,285) 5.00
Forfeited (825,000) 5.00

Unvested as of December 31, 2018 - $ _

During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company granted 264,285 shares of restricted common stock to three consultants for services. All shares of
restricted common stock fully vested upon the TPO. Accordingly, stock-based compensation of $1,321,425 was recognized during the year ended December
31, 2018, which is included in general and administrative expenses in the accompanying statement of operations.

During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company also granted 10,000 shares of restricted common stock to a consultant for services which fully
vested upon the TPO. The Company recognized stock-based compensation expense of $50,000 during the year ended December 31, 2018 for the vesting of
the 10,000 shares of restricted common stock. In addition, the Company also agreed to issue the consultant an aggregate of 825,000 shares of restricted
common stock with the issuance of 275,000 shares of restricted common stock upon each of three milestones. Each of the three milestones has a specific
target in which the Company must meet or exceed which include i) gross bookings of rentals, ii) average daily active rentals, or iii) market capitalization. As
of December 31, 2018, these equity awards were forfeited due to termination of service with the Company.

Warrants

Relating to the 2017 Notes as described in Note 4, the Company issued warrants to purchase up to 200,000 shares of common stock with a fixed exercise
price of $2.10 per share.

Relating to the private placement described above, the Company agreed to issue warrants to the placement agent, equal to 10% the amount of monies raised
divided by $1.75. The Company received $2,164,029 in gross funds from the private placement which has earned the placement agent warrants to purchase
up to 123,659 shares of common stock with an exercise price of $2.00 per share. On June 22, 2018, such placement agent warrants were amended to (i)
decrease the amount of shares that can be purchased at an exercise price of $2.00 per share to 60,392 shares of common stock and (ii) reduce the remaining
63,267 shares to 28,993 shares at a modified exercise price of $7.50 per share, due to the fact that such placement agent warrants were earned 180 days
immediately preceding the filing date of the IPO registration statement.

Relating to the 2018 Convertible Notes, warrants to purchase up to 615,585 shares of our common stock at a price of $3.185 per share were issued to the
holders of such notes, and 15,455 were issued to the broker/dealer.

Relating to the IPO, the Company agreed to issue warrants to purchase up to 75,600 shares of common stock to the underwriters in connection with this
primary offering, exercisable at $6.25 per share (125% of the public offering price in the IPO). The value of the warrants nets against the equity related funds
raised but also is added back to equity for a net zero effect on equity.

In June 2018, the Company entered into agreements with two service provider firms pursuant to which the Company agreed to pay cash compensation and
issue warrants to purchase up to an aggregate amount of 250,000 shares of common stock. The warrants are fully vested and non-forfeitable. The warrants
range from three (3) or five (5) years and are exercisable for $5.00. Accordingly, stock-based compensation of $463,000 was recognized in general and
administrative expenses in the accompanying statements of operations for the year ended December 31, 2108.

The Company used the Black-Scholes pricing model to value the above warrants, which had similar inputs to stock options included in the stock option
section above except for the expected life of the warrants, which was set to match the related term of the warrant.

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, all warrants granted as of such dates were vested.
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NOTE 6 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Related Party Advances

From time to time prior to 2017, the Company received advances from related parties for short-term working capital. Such advances are considered short-
term and non-interest bearing and due on demand. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017 $9,629, remained outstanding.

During the year ended December 31, 2017, advances of $7,500 to former officers were forgiven.

Notes Payable

See Note 4 for disclosure of notes payable to related parties.

Insurance

The president of the Company’s primary insurance broker, providing gap coverage for vehicles on the platform, when existing policy coverage is not
applicable, is also a minority stockholder and holder of 2017 Notes with related warrants. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company had outstanding
balances to the insurer totaling $275,290 and $337,882, included in accounts payable, respectively. During the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, the
Company paid the insurer approximately $4,304,000 and $2,340,000, respectively.

NOTE 7 - INCOME TAXES

The Tax Cuts and Jobs Act

The Tax Cuts and Jobs Act, or TCJA, reduced the U.S. federal corporate income tax rate from 35% to 21%. As a result, carryforwards have been recalculated
to recognize the effect of future rates on deferred tax assets and liabilities. This resulted in a reduction in the deferred tax asset of approximately $62,000 in
2017 with a corresponding decrease in the valuation allowance in the same amount, for zero net impact on the financial statements.

The following table presents the current and deferred tax provision for federal and state income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2018, and 2017:

Current tax provision

Federal $ - % -
State 800 800
Total $ 800 $ 800

Deferred tax provision (benefit)

Federal $ (1,482,000) $ (739,000)

State (410,000) (365,000)

Valuation allowance 1,892,000 1,104,000
Total - R
Total provision for income taxes $ 800 $ 800
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The components of our deferred tax assets (liabilities) for federal and state income taxes consisted of the following as of December 31, 2017 and 2016:

2017 2016
Deferred tax asset attributable to:
Net operating loss carryover $ 3,258,000 $ 1,366,000
Valuation allowance (3,258,000) (1,366,000)
Net deferred tax asset $ - $ -

No federal tax provision has been provided for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 due to the losses incurred during such periods. The Company’s
effective tax rate is different from the federal statutory rate of 21% due primarily to operating losses that receive no tax benefit because of a valuation
allowance recorded for such losses and temporary differences related to a settlement.

2018 2017

Statutory US Federal tax rate 21.0% 34.0%
Permanent differences:

State income taxes, net of Federal benefit 7.0% 5.8%

Stock compensation -4.8% -3.1%

Other -4.8% -0.8%
Temporary differences -0.9% 0.6%
Change in effective tax rate 0.0% -10.7%
Valuation allowance -17.5% -25.8%
Total 0.0% 0.0%

Based on federal tax returns to be filed through December 31, 2018, we had available approximately $11,637,000 in recalculated U.S. and state tax net
operating loss carryforwards, pursuant to the Tax Reform Act of 1986, which assesses the utilization of a Company’s net operating loss carryforwards
resulting from retaining continuity of its business operations and changes within its ownership structure. Net operating loss carryforwards start to expire in
2035 or 20 years for federal income and state tax reporting purposes.

NOTE 8 —- SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Warrant exercise

During March 2019 several of warrant holders exercised their warrants received with the 2018 Convertible Notes (Note 4). Total
proceeds from the exercise of 274,224 warrants was $873,403.

Options

In January 2019, the Company granted 975,000 stock options to officers and directors of the Company with an exercise price of $3.20.

Restricted Stock Units

In February 2019, the Board of Directors approved 140,000 restricted stock unit grants to various employees which generally vest in one to two years.

Agreement

In January 2019, the Company entered into a consulting agreement for services through June 2019. The agreement calls for the
issuance of 10,000 shares of common stock, $10,000 per month, a termination bonus of $10,000, and equity performance
milestones. The equity performance milestones are due in three tranches for a total of 200,000 restricted stock units. Each of the
three milestones has a specific target in which the Company must meet or exceed average daily active rentals by specified points in
time. Although the term of the agreement is through June 2019, the performance milestones are through the year ended December
31, 2019.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized on this 28th day of March, 2019.

HYRECAR, INC.

/s/ Joseph Furnari

Joseph Furnari

Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Scott Brogi

Scott Brogi
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1934, this annual report on Form 10-K has been signed below by the following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature

Title

Date

/s/Joseph Furnari

Joseph Furnari

/s/ Scott Brogi

Scott Brogi

/s/Grace Mellis

Grace Mellis

/s/ Abhishek Arora

Abhishek Arora

/s/ Brooke Skinner Ricketts

Brooke Skinner Ricketts

Chief Executive Officer and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

Chief Financial Officer

March 28, 2019

March 28, 2019

(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

Chairman of the Board of Directors

Director

Director

-29-

March 28, 2019

March 28, 2019

March 28, 2019




Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
We consent to the incorporation by reference in the following Registration Statements:
1) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-229222) pertaining to HyreCar, Inc. 2018 Equity Incentive Plan,
2) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-230472) pertaining to HyreCar, Inc. 2016 Equity Incentive Plan;
of our report dated March 28, 2019 with respect to the financial statements of HyreCar, Inc. which appear in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
/s/ dbbmckennon

Newport Beach, California
March 28, 2019



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Joseph Furnari, certify that:

1.

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of HyreCar Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have:

designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.

Dated: March 28, 2019 By: /s/ Joseph Furnari

Joseph Furnari
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)



EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Scott Brogi, certify that:

1.

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of HyreCar Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have:

designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.

Dated: March 28, 2019 By: /s/ Scott Brogi

Scott Brogi
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)



EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATIONS OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Joseph Furnari, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that the
Annual Report on Form 10-K of HyreCar Inc. for the year ended December 31, 2018 fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that information contained in such report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of HyreCar Inc.

Dated: March 28, 2019 By: /s/ Joseph Furnari
Joseph Furnari
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)




EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATIONS OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Scott Brogi, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that the Annual
Report on Form 10-K of HyreCar Inc. for the year ended December 31, 2018 fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 and that information contained in such report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of
HyreCar Inc.

Dated: March 28, 2019 By: /s/ Scott Brogi
Scott Brogi
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)




